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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's audited consolidated net loss for the year was
HK$229.46 million (2009. net loss of HK$61.61 million). The net
asset value of the Group increased from HK$408.40 million as at
31 December 2009 to HK$890.25 million as at 31 December 2010.
The net loss is mainly attributed to the loss from securities trading,
provision on doubtful debts and impairment loss on intangible
assets.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Tianjin Motor Business

The Group acquired 50% equity interest in Tianjin Kai Sheng
Automobile Service Co., Ltd (“Kai Sheng”) on 11 October 2007.
Kai Sheng and its subsidiaries operated automobile sales and repair
centers in Tianjin city, the PRC. Kai Sheng and its subsidiaries
obtained permission to conduct the sales and repair services of
Zhengzhou Nissan under the authorisation of Zhengzhou Nissan
Automobiles Sales Company Limited. In year 2010, the sales from
private motor vehicle in the PRC grew around 32% and expected
to have a further increase of around 10% to 15% in the coming
year. During the year, the sales volume of Kai Sheng and its
subsidiaries increased due to the growth of the market. For the
financial year, Kai Sheng and its subsidiaries contributed a profit
of HK$0.79 million to the Group. It is expected that there will be a
growth in 12% in the sales volume in year 2011 under the current
prevailing market trends in the PRC. However, due to the recent
incidents of earthquake, tsunami and nuclear leakage in Japan, the
tightened supplies on certain components for manufacturing of
motor vehicles is foreseeable. The target sale volumes of Kai Sheng
for the year 2011 will be inevitably be affected.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
FTEHREUREEERLAR N

Logistic Services

The Group has invested 40% of the issued share capital of Golden
Fame International Investments Group Limited ("GFIIGL") since
13 September 2007. GFIIGL provides various logistic services in
Hong Kong and the PRC including third party logistics, freight
forwarding, supply chain management, river trade shipping and
terminal stevedoring. During the year, the overall revenue of
GFIIGL increased amid a global economic recovery and increase
in cargo volume, GFIIGL has made approximately HK$0.6 million
contribution to the Group as a result. It is expected that GFIIGL will
have a slight increase during year 2011.

Reference is also made to the Company’s announcement dated 8
November 2010 that GFIIGL and its subsidiaries intended to apply
for listing on the growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange
in year 2011 as the planned schedule.

Forestry Business

On 26 April 2010, the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Regent Square Limited, completed its acquisition of
Richful Zone International Limited at a consideration of HK$79.2
million. The consideration was satisfied by an issue of 330,000,000
shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.24 per share
to Mascotte Holdings Limited. Richful Zone International Limited
and its subsidiary hold 50% of the interests in the concession
rights and forestry contracts in respect of three pieces of forest
lands located in Simao District, Pure City, Yunnan Province, the
PRC, with a total site area of approximately 36,735 Chinese
Mu. The concession rights and interest in the forest lands are
expiring in January 2060. At the reporting date, the operation
of the forest lands has no profits contribute to the Group after
payment of management fee to the PRC’s partner. In view of the
current condition of the forest lands and market environments, it
is expected that the operation of the forest lands will have profits
contribution and appreciation in forest lands value to the Group in
the medium to long term spectrum.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

Property Investments

On 19 May 2010, the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Loyal Castle Investments Limited, completed its acquisition of
Perfect Time Investments Limited at a consideration of HK$100
million. The consideration was satisfied by an issue of 400,000,000
shares of the Company to Willie International Holdings Limited.
Perfect Time Investments Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary
held a 20-storey composite building located in Guangzhou
City, the PRC. At the date of completion, the 400,000,000
consideration shares valued at HK$60 million were issued. On
26 May 2010, the Group completed its disposal of Perfect Time
Investments Limited to an independent third party at HK$85
million. The acquisition and disposal contributed a profit of HK$25
million to the Group's results for the year.

Investment in a Limited Partnership

On 17 August 2010, the Company's indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Pan Fortune Investments Limited entered into
an investors’ subscription agreement to invest a total of
US$10,000,000 into a co-investment vehicle, a limited partnership,
established for the purpose of acquiring control of the equity
securities and loan receivables of an investee group which is
a supplier of automotive components, supplying both original
equipment manufacturers and the aftermarket. The investment
was approved by independent shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 27 September 2010. On 18
August 2010, approximately HK$60.67 million (US$7,777,777.78)
has been invested by the Group and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$17.33 million (US$2,222,222.22) is pending to
be called by the limited partnership. The investment represents
22.2% holdings on the limited partnership. The limited partnership
is managed by AITS Cayman Limited which is an affiliate of
Unitas Capital Pte Ltd (“Unitas”). Unitas is one of the pioneers
in large leveraged buy-out transactions in Asia. Since inception in
1999, funds advised by Unitas have invested in excess of US$2.3
billion in equity capital in 28 transactions across a broad range of
industries and geographies. The Company plays a passive role on
the investment and to keep the investment as available-for-sale
financial assets. After the year end, the Company was informed
by the limited partnership that the investee group performance
was ahead of its expectation and the progress of restructuring is
in line with their planning. The investee group 2010's performance
indicates strong support for their 2011’s target performance.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
FTEHREUREEERLAR N

Trading of Securities

The Group invested its surplus cash in Hong Kong listed securities
and unlisted securities. At the result of the volatility of the Hong
Kong stock market, the Group recorded a realised and unrealised
loss of approximately HK$30.91 million and approximately
HK$116.55 million respectively.

Money Lending Business

The Group has used its surplus cash to fund a money lending
business through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Forefront
Finance Company Limited. During the year, Forefront Finance
Company Limited provides short-term loans to various borrowers
which carried interest rates ranging from prime minus 2 to prime
plus 2 per annum. Within the financial year, the money lending
business contributed HK$6.76 million interest income to the Group
and HK$89.35 million provision of doubtful debts was made on
certain outstanding short-term lendings.

Carbon Fiber Business

As disclosed in the announcement dated 14 April 2010 and
last annual report dated 23 April 2010, the directors of Excel
Way Investments Ltd. (“Excel Way"”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which holds an aggregate of 42.86%
equity interests in Tinhua Excel Way Special Fiber (Xintai) Co., Ltd.,
resolved to place Excel Way into voluntary liquidation pursuant to
Section 228A of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Mr. Fok Hei
Yu and Mr. Roderick John Sutton, both of Ferrier Hodgson Limited,
were appointed provisional liquidators of Excel Way on the same
day to preserve and ascertain the residual value of the Company’s
investment in Excel Way. An impairment loss of HK$158.50
million regarding the investment had been made in last year’s
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

The Group financed its operation largely through internal cash
resources and fund raising activities (mainly placing exercises and
issuance of convertible bonds). As at the end of the reporting
period, the cash balance was maintained at approximately
HK$131.34 million (2009. HK$134.61 million). The Group's
gearing ratio, calculated as total borrowings divided by net assets,
is stated at 0% (2009: 20.68%). As at 31 December 2010, the
Group's net assets value amounted to approximately HK$890.25
million (as at 31 December 2009: HK$408.40 million) with total
assets approximately HK$920.07 million (as at 37 December
2009. HK$521.46 million). Net current assets were approximately
HK$723.84 million (as at 31 December 2009: HK$454.56 million)
and the current ratio was 25.27 times (as at 31 December 2009:
16.89 times).

Capital Structure

On 26 January 2010, 43,938,446 share options were granted to
qualified participants under the share option scheme at an exercise
price of HK$0.32 per ordinary share of HK$0.10 each. The share
options were fully exercised on 26 January 2010. The Company
received proceeds of approximately HK$14.06 million.

On 11 February 2010, the Company issued 324,483,760 shares to
convertible bonds holder(s) for the conversion of HK$ 110 million
convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.339 per share.

On 17 February 2010, the Company issued 1,098,461,165 shares
for the completion of its rights issue, a net proceeds of HK$298.82
million was received by the Company.

On 16 March 2010, the Company issued 16,224,188 shares to

convertible bonds holder(s) for the conversion of HK$5.5 million
convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.339 per share.
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FTEHREUREEERLAR N

On 19 March 2010, the Company issued 32,448,376 shares to
convertible bonds holder(s) for the conversion of a HK$11 million
convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.339 per share.

On 26 March 2010, the Company issued 32,448,376 shares to
convertible bonds holder(s) for the conversion of HK$11 million
convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.339 per share.

On 15 April 2010, the Company issued 32,448,376 shares to
convertible bonds holder(s) for the conversion of HK$11 million
convertible bonds at a conversion price of HK$0.339 per share.

On 26 April 2010, the Company issue 330,000,000 shares at an
issue price of HK$0.24 per share to Mascotte Holdings Limited as
a consideration to acquire a company which held forest interest
located in Yunnan Province, the PRC.

On 4 May 2010, the Company issued 60,988,080 shares under
issue mandate to Mr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny, an individual investor
at a price of HK$0.22 per share with the net price of HK$0.218
per share. The closing price on 27 April 2010 is HK$0.227 per
share being the date on which the terms of the issue were fixed.
The Company received a net proceeds of approximately HK$13.29
million from the subscription which was used for general working
capital of the Group.

On 19 May 2010, the Company issue 400,000,000 shares at a
issue price on completion date of HK$0.15 per share to Willie
International Holdings Limited as a consideration to acquire a
company which held 20-storey composite building located at
Guangzhou City, the PRC.

On 29 July 2010, the Company issued 1,250,000,000 shares at a
price of HK$0.10 per share under placing. The Company received
a net proceeds of approximately HK$121.55 million from the
placement.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
As such, no hedging instrument is considered necessary by the
Board during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2009, the Group maintained a bank deposit of
approximately HK$558,000 as collateral to satisfy the contingent
warranty and delivery obligations in relation to certain sales
contracts. As at 31 December 2010, all the collaterals were
released by the bank.

As at 31 December 2010, margin facilities from regulated securities
brokers were granted to the Group which was secured by the
Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2010, the Group has not utilised (as at 37 December
2009: Nil) these facilities.

PROSPECT

At the EGM of the Company held on 10 January 2011,
independent shareholders approved the Company to carry out
capital reorganisation and rights issue exercise. The capital
reorganisation has been approved by court of Cayman Islands on
4 March 2011 and effected on 8 March 2011. The rights issue
then will be carried out as planned and is expected to enhance the
Company’s capital base by approximately HK$390.51 million from
the net proceeds of the rights issue. At the fiscal year end, the
Group's cash resource stood at HK$131.34 million. The Group is in
an advantageous position to take on new business opportunities as
they arise.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEUAREEERER 7 M

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND BE MEBRREKERNE
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 23 employees including RZE-—ZFE+_A=+—RH FX5EEHF

directors of the Company. The policy of employee remuneration, HET BEARGEE -RBREMSER -
bonus, share option scheme and training are commensurate with TE4L - BEARRE T BI RB IR KRB - KA
performance, experience and comparable to the market rate. The RS KITEE - AREREESRHEMER
Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund under the Hong BT EEAImE 6l ATE e R

Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES XREE

Details of the Group's contingent liabilities as of 31 December REBRZZE—ZEF+A=+—HBH2Z=A
2010 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial BEFBHAGAMBERERMEI2 -
statements.

Yeung Ming Kwong HiTEE

Executive Director B}

Hong Kong BE

18 March 2011 —E——F%=A1+N\H
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Profile of the Management

EEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, aged 52, joined the Company on 26
April 2007. Mr. Yeung is the Acting Chairman of the Company,
formerly an executive director and CEO of Kai Yuan Holdings
Limited, (stock code: 1215; formerly known as Wah Lee Resources
Holdings Limited) and an executive director of Goldwiz Holdings
Limited (delisted on 8 September 2008, stock code: 586). He has
over 20 years of experience in import and export trading and
investment business in the PRC. He also holds directorship in major
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree, aged 42, joined the Company on 26
April 2007. She holds an EMBA from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business and a Bachelor's Degree of Arts from York
University, Canada. She has over 10 years of experience in business
development and investment. She was an executive director of
Goldwiz Holdings Limited (delisted on 8 September 2008, stock
code: 586) from May 2006 to January 2007. She also holds
directorships in major subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Lam Yick Sing, aged 51, joined the Company on 4 June 2010.
He had been a civil servant in Hong Kong for over 20 years. Mr,
Lam was a senior administrative manager of Forefront International
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from June 2007 to May 2008. He was an executive
director of Tack Fat Group International Limited (Provisional
Liquidators appointed; stock code: 928).

Mr. Wen Louis, aged 76, joined the Company on 1 September
2006. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from City
University of New York. An Executive Director of Forefront
International (Hong Kong) Limited (“FIHK"”) from 1993 to 1997
and General Manager of FIHK since August 2005. Mr. Wen has
extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising
from previous position at J. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Service in the United States. Mr. Wen is
also an independent non-executive director of Willie International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 273) effective from 22 April 2009.
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Mr. Zhuang You Dao, aged 58, joined the Company on 29
August 2007. He graduated from The Institute of Operation
Management of China (7 B4 & & I8 2[5 ) majoring in corporate
management. Mr. Zhuang has over 30 years of experience in the
automobile industry. He is the Chairman of Tianjin Kai Sheng
Automobile Service Co., Ltd. (KREMI B AELEFR LD A))
and general manager of Tianjin Jinri Automobile Sale & Service
Company Limited (K2 Z B AHEHERBBR A F) . Mr. Zhuang
is a senior consultant of Shenzhen Lan-you Technology Co., Ltd.
CFEIE R BRI A AA), a developer of automobile industry
management software. Mr. Zhuang is an executive of the Chamber
of Industry and Commerce of Tianjin Xiging District, a special
procurator of the First Branch of the People’s Procuratorate of
Tianjin Municipality and a representative of the 14th Session of
People’'s Congress of Tianjin Hedong District.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, aged 50, joined the Company on 26 April
2007. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associated Chartered
Accountants (England and Wales). Mr. Chung has over 20 years of
experience in finance and project investment. He is an executive
director and Chairman of Radford Capital Investment Limited
(stock code: 901), an executive director of Ming Fung Jewellery
Group Limited (stock code: 860) and an independent non-
executive director of Heritage International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 412) and Dragonite International Limited (stock code: 329).

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora, aged 35, joined the Company on
18 May 2007. She obtained a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong in 1999 and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws in 2001. Ms. Lam is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Pak William Eui Won, aged 31, joined the Company on
28 December 2009. He is currently a director of Hennabun
International Group Limited and Cordoba Homes Limited which
is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Willie International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 273) and the former Hennabun Capital Group
Limited. He holds a Master of Laws degree in U.S. taxation from
the University of Washington School of Law, a Juris Doctor's
degree from the University of British Columbia Faculty of Law
and an Economics and Commerce degree from the University of
British Columbia Faculty of Arts. Mr. Pak is an attorney licensed
by the New York State Bar and is a member of the New York
State Bar Association and the American Bar Association. He was
a lawyer in the investment funds practice at White & Case’s New
York and Hong Kong offices. He has substantive experience in the
establishment and representation of both U.S. and international
private investment funds including private equity funds, hedge
funds, real estate funds, distressed funds and hybrid funds.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &
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NBR)ZEBREERA - Pakt &£ RAL
MENERR WARHOMNEM A RERE
Miheges REFEINEMEHBHAAOR
BARERIIREESTEREM -BRK L
MREZERBELAREE: (BELE
RAES HHES FHEES XEBESD
REREES) T HBRBELEELS-




The directors herein present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and through its
subsidiaries and associated companies, is principally engaged in
the business of selling and distribution of Nissan motor vehicles,
operation of the Nissan 4S shops, provision of heavy motor
vehicle repair and maintenance services in the PRC; provision of
logistic services in Hong Kong and the PRC; investment in forest
interest; investment in limited partnership that engages in the
business of the manufacturing of automotive components (such
investment being held for resale purpose); properties investments;
securities trading and money lending business. Other activities and
particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 64.76% of the Group's turnover in
respect of the money-lending business and the securities trading
service providers of the Group accounted for 100% of the Group’s
service costs in relation to the securities trading business. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 41.25% of the
Group’s turnover in respect of the money-lending business. At
no time during the year did a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which the knowledge of the directors of the Company
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued capital) have any
material interest in any of the Group's largest customers.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of affair of the Company and of the Group at the
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
37 to 122.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

Details of movements in share capital and share option scheme of
the Company are set out in notes 24 and 25 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTION, WARRANTS
OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of movements in convertible securities of the Company are
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer shares on a pro rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
The surplus in distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$451,974,000
(2009: HK$233,541,000).

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 123 and
124 of the annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions disclosed in note 34 to

the consolidated financial statements constituted connected

transactions under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

"Listing Rules”). Details of connected transactions are as follows:

1)

Put Option

The Company has entered into the put option Agreement
dated 17 August 2010 (the “Put Option”) with a Director,
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong (“Mr. Yeung”) , so that in the event
that shareholders’ approval is not obtained in respect of a
investment (including a Drag Right) in a limited partnership,
the Company will have a right under the Put Option, subject
to compliance with the Listing Rules, to require Mr. Yeung to
acquire all the issued share capital of Pan Fortune Limited (the
“Pan Fortune”) or all the units owned by Pan Fortune in the
limited partnership at the same investment cost (i.e. US$10
million) made by Pan Fortune. The transfer to Mr. Yeung if
it occurs will be a connected transaction for the Company
subject to the then applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules which may include independent shareholders’ approval.

The Put Option lapsed after the shareholders approved on the
investment at EGM held on 27 September 2010.
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2)

Loan Agreement

On 14 December 2009, a loan agreement entered into
between Crown Creation Limited, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and KEM el B AEHEH
[R A &l (Tianjin Kai Sheng Automobile Service Company
Limited) (“Tianjin Kai Sheng”), an associated company of
the Company for which the Company indirectly owns a 50%
equity interest, pursuant to which Crown Creation Limited
agreed to lend HK$12,500,000 to Tianjin Kai Sheng for
financing its business operation in the PRC. The Loan was
guarantee by Mr. Zhuang You Dao, an executive Director of
the Company. As Tianjin Kai Sheng is a connected person
of the Company under Listing Rules, the provision of loan
constitutes a discloseable and connected transaction, which
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval. On 19
January 2010, the relevant resolution was duly passed at the
EGM of the Company. On 29 January 2010, parties entered
into a supplemental agreement for the minor alterations of
the loan agreement, which had the effect of (i) extending
the repayment date to the date falling six months after
the date of drawing or on 31 December 2010; and (ii)
possibly shortening the actual lending period of the loan
through amending the repayment date to the date falling six
months after the date of drawing or on 31 December 2010,
whichever being the earliest. Subsequent to the supplement
agreement and before drawing of the loan, Tianjin Kai
Sheng informed the lender that they had no immediate
funding requirement. Parties then entered into a termination
agreement on 5 February 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong

Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree

Mr. Lam Yick Sing (Appointed on 4 June 2010)

Mr. Ting Wing Cheung, Sherman (Resigned on 17 May 2010)
Mr. Wen Louis

Mr. Zhuang You Dao

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora
Mr. Pak William Eui Won

In accordance with Article 116 of the Article of Association of the
Company, Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree and
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora will retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Article of Association of the
Company, Mr. Lam Yick Sing, who was newly appointed by the
Board as executive Director will retire and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARE AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the Company's chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies and which were
required to be entered in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

EEAN
F R R S o 1T AE AR 2 Al 2 B AE ]
BAHDEBZERRITHEL -

EERROREBROD 2EER AR

R-E—ZTF+-_A=+—H EFERALF
FETHRABRARARKEMBEEZE (F
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RNAEIRBRzEmRAR (BREREES
FEEGABBENESHEENRAESR
ZHEmRKE) AREREES REAE K
FE3I2EMFEE 2 B Mtk 2 S AR
FUNNE

(i) REXIRGBPZHFR

% of

the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Directors Capacity shares held share capital

[ER NN

ERITRAEAZ

BEEpE g4 PR IR 40 2B Bk

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong Beneficial owner 4,421,047 0.11%
5 R 5 A EHEAA

Mr. Wen Louis Interest of spouse 7,500 0.00%

BRI A il B 2
Mr. Lam Yick Sing Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.74%

ek B o BB A
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(ii) Long positions in shares or registered capital of
associated corporations

Name of associated
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(i) REBEIEz2ROIEMERT2HR

Amount of Approximate
registered percentage of
capital on shareholding
associated or registered

Name of Director corporation Capacity corporations capital
LR ER
HEBCEE TEREARZ
EEpA B EE AR ) HEMEAEE BA B D
Mr. Zhuang You Dao  Tianjin Kai Sheng Corporate interest RMB7,500,000 50%
Automobile Service
Co., Ltd
HRERE REMINBTERE NGIE: £ AR 50%
BRRAA 7,500,0007T
Mr. Zhuang You Dao  Tianjin Jinri Automobile Beneficial interest RMB6,750,000 45%
Sale & Service Co., Ltd
HRERE REZHREHE BEniEn AR 45%
BRI B R R 7 6,750,0007C

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below and note 25 in the consolidated financial statements, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate, neither the Directors nor any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or
debt securities of the Company or had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed on page 17 of Report of the Directors in respect
of the Put Option, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party to and in which any of the
Company's directors or members of its management had a material
interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 6 August 2007. Under the Scheme, the Directors
may grant options to those qualified participants (including
Directors and employees) who, in the opinion of the Board, have
contributed or may contribute to the development of the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest.

The following table discloses movement in the Company’s share
options under the Scheme during the year.

EERNCHCER
REZEMER1TEATRBEARARAHEZ
FEIN RFRAFAEARELEFER
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As at Grant Exercise As at

1 January during during 31 December

Category Date of grant Exercise price 2010 the year the year 2010

R-Z2-2F R-Z-%F

g5 R A THE —-A—-H FREH FriTE +t—A=t-H

Qualified allotees in 26 January 2010 HK$0.32 - 43,938,446 43,938,446 _
aggregate shares shares

BERARA (B5) “R-ZFE-A-+RH 03287 - 43,938,446 43,938 4460k -

As at 31 December 2010, no option has been granted to any
directors nor employees.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons (other than the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) has interests or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, as known
to the Company or recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information
received by the Company.
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Number of
shares/

underlying Approximate

Capacity and shares held % of

Name of Shareholders nature of interests (long position) shareholding
FERe,

HERGHE BAER

RRE B SORERMEE (FR) Bok

Underwriter (Note 1) Beneficial owner 4,100,897,984 88.89%

BHE (M) ERmEAA 4,100,897,984 88.89%

Get Nice Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

EAF R AR AR (FFEE2) REREEER 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(P &ES)

Get Nice Incorporated (Note 2) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

Get Nice Incorporated (Fff52) AR A B R 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(B7ES)

Get Nice Securities Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(Note 5)

BB SFARAF (KMFE2) EnEAA 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(HEES)
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Number of
shares/

underlying Approximate

Capacity and shares held % of

Name of Shareholders nature of interests (long position) shareholding
FiERe,

HERGEE BOER

REREB SORERMEE (#R) Bok

Chu Yuet Wah (Note 3) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

FRE (M5E3) REREEER 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(H45E5)

Active Dynamic Limited (Noted 3) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

Active Dynamic Limited ( Ffif5£3) G EE R 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(H$5E5)

Eagle Mission Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

Eagle Mission Limited ( Fff#£3) ZPE A E R 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(H$5E5)

Galaxy Sky Investments Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled 1,366,960,000 29.63%
corporations (Note 5)

Galaxy Sky Investments Limited (Bf5E3)  SZiE#AEEZ 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(H45E5)

Kingston Securities Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(Note 5)

SMEFBSFBERAF (MFE3) ERlEAA 1,366,960,000 29.63%
(H$5E5)

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &




Note:

1. These are the Rights Shares which the Underwriter has underwritten in respect
of the Rights Issue as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements. The Underwriter is Chung Nam Securities Limited.

2. Based on the filings under the SFO, Get Nice Securities Limited is wholly-owned
by Get Nice Incorporated, which in turn is wholly-owned by Get Nice Holdings
Limited.

3. Based on the filings under the SFO, Kingston Securities Limited is wholly-owned
by Galaxy Sky Investments Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Eagle
Mission Limited, and in turn is owned as to 80% by Active Dynamic Limited.

Active Dynamic Limited is wholly-owned by Chu Yuet Wah.

4. These are the Rights Shares which the sub-underwriters have agreed to sub-

underwrite in respect of the Rights Issue.

Saved as disclosed above, no person had notified the Company of
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2010 that was required to be record
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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1. ZEBROABHEBMRER (REEMBHRRMEIS
PR EE) B MHERRD - BHEBRATRIEFERA
o

2. PBRREAFRBEGAEENSRE BHEFAR
‘A 7] H Get Nice Incorporated® & # A& * i Get Nice
Incorporated Rl R T IERBR AR 2 EHER ©

3. BRREFRBEGRIIEENSRG 2NEERE
FE A &)/ Galaxy Sky Investments Limited &2 & A -
i1 Galaxy Sky Investments Limited&!|f1 Eagle Mission
Limited%® & # 5 ' Eagle Mission Limitedg5 Active
Dynamic Limited# £80% ° 1 Active Dynamic
LimitedBFZERELEHE °

4. ZEBROHAEDBHEHRAEMRERD SHZ HERERD -

BREXEZREN RZE—ZFF+=A
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336 B 2 EmSKE ©
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to
34.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited,
who has been the auditor of the Company since the year 2007.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appointed Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Yeung Ming Kwong
Executive Director

Hong Kong
18 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognises that good governance standards
maintained throughout the Group serves as an effective risk
management mechanism for the Company. The Board of Directors
(the “Board”) of the Company is committed to ensuring a high
level of corporate governance standards.

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company has adopted its own code on
corporate governance practices which incorporate all the code
provision in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company will continue
to enhance the corporate governance standards throughout
the Group and ensure further standards be put in place by
reference to the recommended best practices whenever
suitable and appropriate.
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2. CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

i)

Board of Directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised
of 8 members including 5 executive directors and 3
independent non-executive directors. The biographical
details are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this report. The
executive directors are responsible for managing the
Group’s business, including the business development,
corporate strategies and company policies. The
Independent Non-executive Directors endeavor to assist
the Board to maintain high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting standards as well as providing
adequate checks and balance for safeguarding the
interest of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors at all times
exceed one-third of the Board membership. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his/her independence to the Company. None
of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term which
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of
the CG Code, However, one-third of the Directors of
the Company (both executive and independent non-
executive) are subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting under the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are in line to those of
the CG Code. The Board is comprised of professionally
qualified and diversified individuals.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

The Company has not set up nomination committee. The
Board as a whole is responsible for the procedures of
appointment of board members and for nominating them
for election by shareholders on the initial appointment
and thereafter at regular intervals by rotation.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and
financial performance of the Group. In 2010, the Board
held 7 full board meetings. In addition, executive Board
meetings are convened when necessary to deal with day-
to-day matters that require the Board’s prompt decision,
and are thus usually only executive directors would be
attended. Individual attendance records on full board
meetings and committees meetings are set out on page
30 of this Annual Report. Directors who are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would
not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject to
certain exceptions set out in the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company Secretary maintains
the minutes of the Board meetings for inspection by
directors. All directors have access to the services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on corporate governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, Audit Committee member and Remuneration
Committee member of the Company may take
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company should they so wish.
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Board and Board Committee Attendance

The following table indicates the number of Board and

Committee Meetings during the financial year and the

number of attendance by each of the Directors:

EFEREFZS
TREREZER
KB F AR ﬁ
EEHREZEEREL

M

4

‘H]]D

m
X 19

&
%8
2

o %

T
e
RE:

N IS \lﬂi Iﬂﬁ>

>:§¥RFE$*&N

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTERRE
Audit  Remuneration
Name Board Committee Committee
®E B8 BENERE FMEES
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong SR 7/7 2/2 212
Mr. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree EERLT 6/7 - -
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEs B A
(Appointed on 4 June 2010) (R—Z=—Z=4F
NAMBEEE) 6/6 - -
Mr. Ting Wing Cheung, TKESRE
Sherman (Resigned on 17 (R=—Z=—=ZF
May 2010) AA+EHBE) 171 - -
Mr. Wen Louis BERSTE 6/7 - -
Mr. Zhuang You Dao HRBLTE 717 - -
Independent Non-executive B EHITESE
Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBLLE 177 212 212
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora MRS 2+ 177 12 212
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won%t 4 477 2/2 2/2
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Directors’ Duties

The Board is charged with leadership and supervision
of the Group’s affairs and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group. Each director has a
duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally
include but not limited to the overall group strategies,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual and interim
results, recommendation on the appointment or
reappointment of directors, and other significant
operational and financial matters. Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may affect the Group's businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility to prepare the financial statements and
have them audited on an annual basis. The Company has
adopted the generally accepted accounting standards in
Hong Kong in preparing financial statements. Reasonable
and prudent judgment and estimates have been made.
The Group announces its financial results on a timely
basis.

Conduct on Share Dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
securities transactions and dealings (the “Code of
Conduct”) based on the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “"Model Code”).
The terms of Code of Conduct are no less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of
Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined
therein. Specific enquiry has been made of all Directors
of the Company who have confirmed in writing of their
compliance with the required standards set out in the
Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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ii)

iii)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have a designated position of Chief Executive
Officer. The daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the Executive Directors. On
27 February 2008, Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, executive
director of the Company, was appointed as acting
Chairman of the Group.

Board Committees

In 2007, the Board established an Audit Committee
and a Remuneration Committee with defined terms of
reference. Both committees are chaired by Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

(a) Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee
which comprises of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance, and has discussed auditing, internal
control, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the interim and annual financial
statements) with the senior management and the
auditor. In addition, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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(b) Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee responsible for review and determination
of the remuneration policy and packages of
the directors and management executives.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee follow the CG
Code. No director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

iv) External Auditor

The fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Mazars CPA
Limited, in respect of audit, review services and non-
audit services in relation to the circulars of a major and
connected transaction and the Company’s rights issue
for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
HK$770,000, HK$130,000 and HK$757,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of a system of
internal control that provides reasonable assurance of
the reliability and integrity of financial and operational
information, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the
safequarding of assets and the compliance with laws and
regulations. The system of internal control is designed to
manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure while its goal
is to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance regarding
the achievement of organisational objectives.

During the year end 31 December 2010, the Company
engaged Mazars CPA Limited to review the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls on the Group. The review
covered the control on investment, money lending, securities
trading and cash management operations on the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy
of promoting investor relations and communication by
maintaining meetings with institutional shareholders, fund
managers and analysts through different means including
meetings, presentations and correspondence. In an effort to
enhance communications with shareholders and investors,
the Company maintains a website (www.forefront.com.hk)
to disseminate information relating to the latest business
developments and all Company announcements. The
Company regards the Annual General Meeting (the "AGM")
as an important event as it provides an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders. All
shareholders of the Company are given at least a minimum
of 20 clear business days notice of the date and venue of the
AGM at which time the Directors and Committee members
are available to answer questions on the business. The
Company supports the CG Code's principle to encourage
shareholder participation. The Board, according to the Listing
Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll.
The results of the Company voting will be announced on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange website and the Company
website.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ve M AZARS

To the shareholders of
Forefront Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Forefront
Group Limited (the
“the Group"”) set out on pages 37 to 122, which comprise the

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together

consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

A
B5 5 watwi i pspiAr LA 7l
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2011

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - F—FF+—-H=+—HIFZ
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
P 5 FET FHET
(Restated)
(Z5)
Turnover EEERR 3 (21,703) 46,518
Other income H At Y A 3 29,239 513
(Provision) Written back of provision for RIBIR (BHE) BB E M
bad and doubtful debts (89,346) 42,769
General and administrative expenses — M RITHFAX (18,913) (19,637)
Changes in fair value of financial assets REEIREATFEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss WBEEZ AT EES) (116,551) 26,839
Finance costs & Bk AR 4(a) (1,324) (992)
Share of results of associates JEAEEE AR ¥4 11 1,393 2,676
Impairment loss on interest in an associate P —EEE A B 2R
REEE - (158,500)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BLEEZRERERE (12,258) -
Loss before taxation B 4 AT S 18 4 (229,463) (59,814)
Taxation sl 7 - -
Loss for the year from continuing REREEB 2 FNEE
operations (229,463) (59,814)
Loss from discontinued operations ERIEEEXB 2 EE = (1,798)
Loss for the year FREER (229,463) (61,612)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE
Exchange difference arising from BE G N B A RBF 7S
translation of financial statements of WEREAZER =R
overseas subsidiaries (213) (30)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZ2HEEE#TE (229,676) (61,642)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWARR

Year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—-ZF—ZFF+-H=+—HIFFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FERT FAT
(Restated)
(E7)

Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT IS FEREE
Equity holders of the parent SARIRERE A (229,463) (61,612)
Non-controlling interest FE 2 s hE 2w - -
(229,463) (61,612)

Total comprehensive loss for the year LATATEEEFAZE

attributable to: EiE 4R -

Equity holders of the parent S RERERE A (229,676) (61,642)
Non-controlling interest FEVE MR M A - -
(229,676) (61,642)
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&751)
Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREEESE 9 (0.80) (1.66)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2010 R —=F

e U HRR K

—FF-H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —EEAF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2t FHxT FAETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB LFEE 10 409 1,204
Interest in associates AL EER/N] P e 11 36,487 37,094
Goodwill SRS 12 = -
Intangible assets mEEE 13 69,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHNERBEE 14 60,512 -
166,408 38,298
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value RERRZEATEEEZ
through profit or loss B E 15 451,324 273,919
Loans receivable JE U B R 17 150,571 60,082
Other receivables H b fE Y018 18 20,420 13,994
Pledged deposits HEMFH 19(b) — 558
Bank balances and cash ReEMREZEY 19(a) 131,342 134,610
753,657 483,163
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b JE T BB 20 29,820 28,603
29,820 28,603
Net current assets RBEEFE 723,837 454,560
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBERE 890,245 492,858
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Zero coupon convertible bonds ZREABERES 21 — 84,461
NET ASSETS EEFE 890,245 408,397
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e U BRI R

At 31 December 2010 R-E—F#E+—-H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTThF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = THER FHET
Capital and reserves BRAR #E

Share capital [ 24 406,082 43,938
Reserves & 484,163 364,459

Equity attributable to equity holders of BRRIRERE A
the parent FEAG A% 1 890,245 408,397
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR M A - -
TOTAL EQUITY BEAE 890,245 408,397

The financial statements on pages 37 to 122 were approved and FIVRINBE U BREEBETEN-F

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2011 ——F=ATN\BHERRENE THT
and are signed on behalf by: NEERKEE:
Yeung Ming Kwong Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
Bk EEBR
Director Director
EZE EF
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Statement of Financial Position

BB AR R &

At 31 December 2010 R-E—F#E+—-H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B 33 THE T FAETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NN $ 16 818,731 319,926
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHERBEE 14 = -
818,731 319,926

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H {th B U 5008 18 583 290
Pledged deposits BHEBFR - 558
Bank balances and cash RITHEGT MRS 19 129,783 90,807
130,366 91,655
Current liabilities REBAE

Other payables H b JE T B 20 2,963 1,390
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 5B |8 A B 5B 86,905 47,078
89,868 48,468
Net current assets RBEEFE 40,498 43,187
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBERE 859,229 363,113

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Zero coupon convertible bonds TERABRES 21 = 84,461
NET ASSETS EEFE 859,229 278,652

Equity and reserves BEREE
Share capital [N 24 406,082 43,938
Reserves 1 26 453,147 234,714
TOTAL EQUITY BELAE 859,229 278,652

FIERINAZHMBREAKEHEZTEN _-F
——F AT N\BHEREENE -XHT
JEERERTRE:

The financial statements on pages 37 to 122 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2011
and are signed on behalf by:

Yeung Ming Kwong Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree

BN EEB
Director Director
EFE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRERSB X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z_—F—FF+ A=+ —HIF&F

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

BRRREREARLE
Equity
component of
Share  zero coupon Capital  Cumulative Non-
Share Share option  convertible Capital ~ redemption translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve bonds reserve reserve reserve deficit Total interest  Total equity
288
TRRES
k& ROEE BRERE  2EEBS ERGE HTEEGEE RARERE 2B i FERER RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T T Thn Thn TiEn T T TAL L ThT
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 93,636 709,566 - - 10,482 1173 243 (589,825) 225275 - 225,275
Loss for the year FnEE - - - - - - - (61,612) (61,612) - (61,612)
Other comprehensive loss FAEM2EEE
for the year
Exchange difference arising
from translation of foreign REE
operation - - - - - - (30) - (30) - (30)
Transactions with REENRERDZ
equity holdersof the ~ ARAREREA
Company recognised ETZR%
directly in equity
Issue of new shares, Bak
net of expenses (BHBRER) 56,526 35,000 - - - - - - 91,526 - 91,526
Share options granted RinBRE - - 7210 - - - - - 7,210 - 7210
Issue of shares under share 15 B gt
option scheme Bakh 16,899 12,788 (7.210) - - - - - 2477 - 2,477
Shares issued on comversion R AREFELT
of convertible bonds, i (BARET)
net of expenses 52,631 47,690 - 23,230 - - - - 123,551 - 123,551
Capital reorganisation e (175,754) - - - - - - 175,754 - - -
At 31 December 2009
43938 805,044 - 23230 10,482 1173 213 (475,683) 408,397 - 408,397
At 1 January 2010 RZE-TE-F-8 43938 805,044 - 23230 10,482 1173 213 (475,683) 408,397 - 408,397
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (229,463) (229,463) - (229,463)
Other comprehensive loss £REH2EHE
for the year
Exchange difference arising £ E 5/ ERES 2
from translation of foreign ~ B} £
operation - - - - - - 213) - (213) - 213)
Transactions with equity EERRREEZZ
holders of the Company ~ AARREHEA
recognised directly in ~ EfTZX 5
equity
Issue of new shares, netof ~ E/T3k
expenses (BHBER) 204,099 70,295 - - - - - - - M
Issue of shares onrights B %
issue, net of expenses (BNBRY) 109,346 188,977 - - - - - - 298,823 - 298,823
Share options granted RiERE - - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
Issue of shares under share 13 55 R ig 3t Bl
option scheme BORH 4,394 9,667 (1) - - - - - 14,060 - 14,060
Shares issued on conversion TR EHE
of convertible bonds, net {7 (3
of expenses (BAMBFER) 32,448 76,528 - 2330 - - - - 85,746 - 85,746
Issue of optional bonds BEEHRES
(note 21) (W) - - - 10472 - - - - 10,472 - 10,472
Shares issued on conversion B E { EHE
of optional bonds L0 11,357 27,143 - (10,472) - - - - 28,028 - 28,028
At 31 December 2010 i3
+-A=t+-8 406,082 1,177,654 - - 10,482 1173 - (705,146) 890,245 - 890,245
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

.%?Afﬁﬁlmg%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & THER FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEXEK
Net cash used in operations KPR e FRE 27 (515,878) (100,174)
Interest paid EF B (38) (229)
Net cash used in operating activities CEEEAREF5E (515,916) (100,403)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment HAEFTIE A - 131
Interest received RGNS 114 351
Dividend received from an associate B — R = A FRE 1,200 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEY % BE L& E (74) (5)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEHEWBREE
financial assets (60,512) -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary PE—FRBARMSEHRIE 29 85,000 -
Acquisition of an associate U BE — [E B & 1 B = (24,575)
Net cash generated from (used in) RETEFE (FTA)
investing activities ReEH 25,728 (24,098)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings fEERIT R EMEE = (27,274)
Proceeds from issue of optional BITEEBUES TR
bonds/convertible bonds BEHFEIE 38,500 107,249
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT AT K08 135,192 91,526
Proceeds from issue of new shares under 1R & 88 P4 ot &1 2%
share option scheme % 2 FriSsk18 14,060 22,477
Proceeds from issue of new shares on HAR S BT R AR 2 P15 5/ 78
rights issue, net of expenses (BEHBRAR) 298,823 -
Net cash generated from RMETHREREER
financing activities 486,575 193,978
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

AREHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z_—F—FF+ A=+ —HIF&F

2010 2009
—E-FF —EEAF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
LhEE: FBT FHE T
Effect on cumulative translation ENBREREZY
adjustments (213) (30)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BERBELZEY (RD)
cash equivalents B hnE 58 (3,826) 69,447
Cash and cash equivalents FNzHRERREEEYD
at beginning of year 135,168 65,721
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEACRESEEY
at end of year 19 131,342 135,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Forefront Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office, principal
place of business, activities and particulars of the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out in the Corporation Information
and Report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2009 consolidated financial statements. The adoption
of the new/revised HKFRS that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year had no significant effects
on the results and financial position of the Group and
the Company for the current and prior years, except that
certain presentation and disclosures of consolidated financial
statements item have been revised. A summary of the main
effect on the accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

B %% R MY R

DNAEH

BHOSREERARANFASESEMMNX
YZBARRAEROPREBBARS
PrBERAR ([BXA]) LM ARE R
HMB ARz MR R EEL RN
Rl KB RFRHARAAEHNRE
EEWmEA-

TESTHE

mEERE
HERAMBRRDIEFTBYHREE
A([EBMBHREERY )RR -FEY
BHREE QG  BREBGMA
g ([BEREMAE])EHZAEER
BEWBHREER FEGIER(TF
BEFERN]) RRE - BEAREHR
AR EBAERAED 2B ERTE - Ul F4R
EMBHRRTNEBRMES LMHRL
BB BEGE

g A

.

NEEFE M MERTRA 2 G5t HE
B -HMEAEEBEBALNAREF
®

/

yat

HEGAVBBRRIAERELE T
e

HM 2]/ EERT BB B RE LR
HAEBRARANRAFENRBEFE
ZEBERFHEARRL EERTE LR
BMBHRRAEBZET2ITARKE
FHCFEF -BAKRBERMAZETHR
R EXEXEHEHINMT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY R

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised): Business Combinations/ Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 with amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised)

The revised standard introduced a number of major changes

including the following:

acquisition-related transaction costs, other than share
and debt issue costs, to be expensed as incurred;

existing interest in the acquiree to be remeasured at fair
value, with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss,
upon subsequent changes in ownership interests;

non-controlling interest in the acquiree to be measured
at either fair value, or at its proportionate interest in the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree;

contingent consideration to be recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date; and

goodwill to be measured at the excess of the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s interest
in the acquiree and the amount of any non-controlling
interest over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
from the acquisition.

The Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 contains amendments

to clarify the measurement of the fair value of an intangible

asset acquired in a business combination and to permit the

grouping of intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has

a similar useful economic life.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised): Business Combinations/Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 with amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised)
(Continued)

The Group amended its accounting policies in relation to
business combinations in order to bring them in line with the
requirements under HKFRS 3 (Revised). The new accounting
policies are set out in the notes below. In accordance with
the relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 (Revised), the
Group has applied these new policies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2010. These changes in accounting policies did not
affect the accounting for the acquisitions of the subsidiaries
during the year since these acquisitions did not involve
material acquisition-related transaction costs and any non-
controlling interests.

HKAS 27 (Revised). Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The revised Standard requires accounting for changes in
ownership interests in a subsidiary, while maintaining control,
to be recognised as an equity transaction. It also requires,
when the group loses control of a subsidiary, any interest
retained in the former subsidiary to be remeasured at fair
value with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. This
principle is also extended to a disposal of an associate through
the consequential amendments to HKAS 28: Investments in
Associates. The new accounting policies are set out in the
note below. The adoption of the revised standard did not have
an impact on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as
at 31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as that
of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceased.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values
(at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from owners of the parent. For each business
combination occurs on or after 1 January 2010, the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree is measured initially either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. This choice of measurement
basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. For each
business combination occurred prior to 1 January 2010,
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree was measured
at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A R 2 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to
the non-controlling interests. From 1 January 2010, total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
parent and the non-controlling interest even if this results in
the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. Prior to 1
January 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interest
in excess of the non-controlling interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Changes in ownership interest

From 1 January 2010, changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the parent.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary is accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, jointly controlled entity or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

B %% R MY R

TESHEE(F)

ReEE(#F)

DI 2 EARAAERE
BERMEtE2EERAZAEKRBYEER
BRAEEANNSFERER A _-F
—TE-A—HE 2ERALBESRERN
FRFEE AN NSRS - BIE L
REEYHERER 2 HBHBREA-
R-ZE—TF—H—HAl FEERERE
ERZERBHERKE QR REZE
BN AEERETEL SR H
FERERBBRORNZEBERAE
HEEIMR B TR ET R RIRR SN -

HERERZE

H-_Z-ZF-A-H WAKER
MEARcHEBEEEaHRES BY
BEYAEEREUZME QR 22
B AAIRIIERRRR S - NEB Z #a
EOFEREm o REM B T UAE
DA BR 18 5 OB B 2 B 2 AR M o 2 B
B IR R BAEFBEESNRE K
REZATEMERZEMNZRE HE
BEREaERLEERNTRAREBA-

AN E B K EHH B AR 2 EH 4 8l
HEBREONBERREZAFERRE
EEHIEEEMBETAMNREESZA
FEZBBRVZHIBARZEE (8
EEE) LB E N R IR RSN
REZFHEZAZRASERER 2=
BB AR HENB R R EAb
2HEBABRZRE  SRBOE AR
EEERELEMBEEEXABZAZAR
EEAR-ERTHBARRE 2 MK
B Kz AT B R R AT 4 R sk R R 2 AR
S FHAEEHEEBRARIE
MISEE BEAR) HAEHEEHE
thIgE (@A) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 —E— T F F3# 49




50

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interest (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2010, the Group applied a policy of treating
transactions with non-controlling interest as transactions
with external parties to the Group and the excess amount of
any consideration paid over the carrying value of the non-
controlling interest acquired was recognised as goodwill. For
decreases in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in a loss of
control, the difference between the consideration received
and the carrying amount of the share of net assets disposed
of was recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, in which the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses.
The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income includes the Group's share of
the post-acquisition results of the associate for the year.
The consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate and
also goodwill. The Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses when the Group’s share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest
in the associate, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

From 1 January 2010, goodwill arising on an acquisition of
a subsidiary is measured as the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of any previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an acquisition
of an associate or a jointly controlled entity is measured as
the excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquired associate or jointly controlled entity. Prior to
1 January 2010, goodwill represented the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly controlled entity.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised as a
separate asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates
or jointly controlled entities is included in interests in
associates or jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill is
not reversed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

From 1 January 2010, in respect of a subsidiary, any excess of
the acquisition date amounts of identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary over
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of an associate or a
jointly controlled entity, any excess of the Group's share of
its net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment is recognised immediately as income. Prior
to 1 January 2010, any excess of the Group’s share of the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly
controlled entity over the related cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repair and maintenance are changed to the
profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement 50%
Furniture and fixture 20%-50%
Motor vehicles 33%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
definite) and impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined by the
period over which it is expected to bring economic benefits
to the Group. The intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use over their
estimated useful live of 50 years.

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortisation
method for these intangible assets annually and makes
adjustment when necessary.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group's
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset
expire or when the Group transfers the financial asset and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that
is, when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with
any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
(i) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not designated and effective
hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss if (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (i) they
are part of a group of financial assets that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or
(iii) they contain embedded derivatives that would need to be
separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including loans and other receivables
and amounts due from subsidiaries are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-free
loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect
of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition over the year to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated at this category or not
classified in any of the other categories of financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets, other
than those at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired.
The impairment loss of financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in subsequent
periods through profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables and
amounts due to subsidiaries. All financial liabilities except
for derivatives are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Convertible bond

The component of the convertible bond that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of issue costs. On the
issue of the convertible bond, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for a similar
bond that does not have a conversion option; and this amount
is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity,
net of issue costs. The value of the conversion option carried
in equity is not changed in subsequent years.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bond based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of the convertible bond are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash equivalent represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases.

Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised gain or loss
on investment held for trading is recognised to restate to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised directly in
equity.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

e Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate;

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences deferred in the separate component of
equity relating to that foreign operation is recognised in
income statement when the gain or loss on disposal is
recognised.

B %% R MY R

TESHEE(F)

SNERE (F)
INERZERRXZHEZERBE DI
ER -AEEZERGREFHERAESR
BEDINESHECEREERBBEME
2 ONE Y R B R B ek iR RERR o
REMBEARNTFEIIRZIFEKIEE
2 A 2 1 BE W s B B 1R 0 1R 28 0k P AR
RoERBAERERBREIERENRBRE
BEERBEER NS RERZIFERE
BmES AIREERNBERER -

DREEBANREINER ZEAEEE
B (RNER]) 2 XERTBAR T
BATHTABRERZIEY:

s NEBEMBRARZIZEENEE
B EHERBZEMERKE

o BEREERABRZWRARMIZF
YERBE

s MARLHMBREMELZENEZE
AEABRAEERBINEE 2%
RE-—HozEBEEMELZE
RER BAS/PEZBILED - 4
EBNEBER B AW RBINER
BB 2B EZE 2 Rit®
RN RERR &5 BB B 1 e 5% T

=7
s ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 — & — T F F3# 59




60

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY &

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to determine
whether property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
with finite useful lives have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be require to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased
asset.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payment

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payment
under the Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method and discounted to its
present value and after deducting the fair value of any related
assets, including retirement scheme benefit.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in profit
or loss at the grant date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; or has an interest in the Group
that gives it significant influence over the Group; or has
joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item

reported in the financial statements, are identified from the

financial information provided regularly to the Group’'s most

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating

resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
financial statements. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.
They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future
periods, in case the revision also affects future periods.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries/
associates has suffered any impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 and follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining
whether amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details
of the approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future cash
flows, including expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in
financial performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Details of the estimates used to calculate
the recoverable amount are given in note 12. Estimates,
assumptions concerning the future and judgements are
made in the preparation of the financial statements. They
affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability of the loans
receivable. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including assessing the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance will be required.

Fair value estimation

Unlisted convertibles notes are stated at fair value based
on the valuations performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on a method of valuation which involves certain estimates.
In relying on the valuation reports, the directors of the
Group have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuations is reflective of the current market
conditions.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether its intangible assets are
impaired at least on an annual basis. The requires an
estimation of value in use of the intangible assets. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected cash flows from the intangible assets and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of the following
new/revised HKFRS that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to Classification of Rights Issues’

HKAS 32

Amendments Limited Exemption from Comparative
to HKFRS 1 HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
(Revised) Adopters?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?

FTESHEE(F)
BERMBEBREEN ZRREH
E/\ﬁﬁfr‘ﬁ*ﬁti,ﬁ?é BHHmERER &

SEAIAGEMMIAT ZHIAT K
fa—f%? M REEN ZEFEYNAK
FRRARER MAEETRERER
4% o

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)
—-Int 14

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010
Amendments to
HKFRS 7
Amendments to
HKAS 12
HKFRS 9

Related Party Disclosures®

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement?

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010*

Disclosures — Transfer of Financial
Assets®

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets®

Financial Instruments’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1
January 2011, as appropriate

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the

results of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 3. EEERKHE
Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as BOHEBR EEBRWEDITOT
follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
(a) Turnover (a) Bz
Net (loss) gain on disposal of HERBREKREZAFE
financial assets at fair value RIEZHVBEEZ
through profit or loss (BB B FE (30,913) 42,025
Interest income from provision of REeRRB 2
financial services FEMA 6,764 4,191
Dividend income NN 2,446 302
(21,703) 46,518
(b) Other income (b) EHAug A
Bank interest income H|ITH BUA 114 420
Net gain on acquisition and disposal P A I R e 2 AT
of a subsidiary (notes 28 and 29) FEE (MYFE281%29) 25,000 -
Bargain purchase arising from WiE—FBRARMEEZ
acquisition of a subsidiary BEEEE 3,262 -
Other Hith 863 93
29,239 513
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging:

4. BRBATEIE

BRI AT B RS FNBR T O B IRZSIIR -

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
(a) Finance costs (a) BE KA
Interest on interest-bearing BARAFAZEEERY
borrowings wholly EBEZHME
repayable within five years 38 229
Amortisation of effective interest on BT ERBRRES 2
zero coupon convertible bonds BEEAE 1,286 763
1,324 992
(b) Other items (b) HEMttEE
Auditor's remuneration % BN BN & 900 750
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-WEREREITE
equipment 867 989
Operating lease charges on premises MELERET W 1,036 918
Share-based payment in respect of EEBRE AR 22
share option (note 25) FRIE (HiE25) - 7,210
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 1,242 -
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINA BIEEEMNS
emoluments:
— Salaries and other allowances —¥e kHEMER 5,087 5,870
— Contributions to defined — R EHRETEIHR
contribution plans 150 184
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5. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 5. EEM&

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-BE+tZB=1-ALEE

Basic
salaries, Mandatory
Appointed Resigned allowance Provident
during during and other Fund scheme
the year the year Fees benefits contribution Total
- 0/8 5 B
BER Nk
Name of Director £33 RERZHR RERRE ik bR AR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn TER TiEn TiEn
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 300 - 300
Mr. Zhou Qi Jin BEeEE - - - - - -
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree BERIL - - - 420 1 432
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BREEE - - - 420 12 432
Mr. Kwong Wai Tim, Willam B4 % 4 - - - - - -
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEMLE - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Ting Wing Cheung, ThERAE - 17 May
Sherman nA+tA - 160 5 165
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora WREat - - 120 = = 120
Ms. Swartz, Kristi Lynn Swartz, Kristi LynnZ - - - - - -
Mr. Zhuang You Dao FRERE - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak Willam Eui WonZt £ - - 120 - 120 120
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEBEE 4 June -
~AEA = 207 7 214
360 1,627 156 2,023
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5. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

5. EEM< (&)

Year ended 31 December 2009
HECSTNETZA=T-ALEE

Basic
Resigned/ salaries, Mandatory
Appointed Removed allowance Provident
during during and other Fund scheme
the year the year Fees benefits contribution Total
iR B
RER BHR DES
Name of Director EEA RERZE Bt/ ES ik R HEL: &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAL AL TET
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 376 - 376
Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy BRERT - . - - . -
Mr. Zhou Qi Jin ARekE - 20 Nov
+-A=+A - 319 - 319
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree EREL - - - 420 12 432
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BRKEE - - - 420 12 43
Mr. Kwong Wai Tim, Willam — B#F% 4 - 3Sep
nA=A 81 - - 81
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun ERBAL - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Ting Wing Cheung, TkERAE - -

Sherman - 420 12 432
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora HRH Lt - - 120 - . 120
Ms. Swartz, Kristi Lynn Swartz, Kristi Lynn& = - 29 Dec

TZAZtAA 120 - - 120

Mr. Zhuang You Dao ERERE - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won%5 % 28 Dec -

TZR=tNE - - - -

44 2,075 36 2,552

No director waived any emoluments during the year. No
incentive payment nor compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any director for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009. Nil).
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 6. EEFAL
Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, IuGEeHFALFR B=ZHL(ZFZEN
three (2009: three) are executive directors whose emoluments Fi=f) BRATEFT HEZHEER
are disclosed in note 5. B FESRH FE o
The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2009: two) FRENEBRML (ZEFENF - H)
individuals during the year were as follows: ALTzMEmT:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHEIT
Basic salaries and allowances BERE & RER 1,020 1,200
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHER 24 24
1,044 1,224
The emoluments fell within the following band: BT AN EE

Number of individuals

A
2010 2009
ZE-ZF ZETNF
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z % T%1,000,00078 7T 2 2
During the year, no payments were paid to the five highest FR AEETERRMNERITALT (B
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) HESEREMES) X NRE EAH
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B INER sk hn B AR &k B0y 2 425 ok B Bl

compensation for loss of office. B
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7. TAXATION 7.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
exempted from taxation in the Cayman lIslands. Hong Kong
Profits Tax has not been provided in the financial statements
as the Company and its subsidiaries have no assessable profits
or have unutilised tax losses to set off against current year's
assessable profits for the years of 2010 and 2009.

Bt 1R
ARARRFAEHRSEMAL W EHE
BMAESHERE - AR AR A KEM
BRARAR-_ZE-—ZSFR-_ZETNEFLE
JERRTBE A - B R A AEE B AE
HEFEZRRB SN B &N
WRPFRBENS RS-

Reconciliation of tax expenses BIE B X H IR
2010 2009
—E-EF —ERNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Loss before taxation from continuing BEROBKRIFEEER 2
and discontinued operation PR B A ES 18 (229,463) (61,612)
Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate & & &G L16.5%
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZFZFENF:16.5%)
RGN (37.861) (10,166)
Net effect of non-deductible expenses/ TAIBRA Y ez
tax-exempted revenue FERE (1,006) 27,204
Unrecognised temporary differences RERZERERE 106 61
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ) f 5¢ A Ak 132 2 T4 1E 55 18
losses - (17,099)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets in FHEMEEBE
respect of tax losses RERBELERIHE E 38,761 -
Taxation as per statement of FEBARE Y] 2 BB
comprehensive income - -
8. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 8. BRREMLER

The loss attributable to shareholders includes a loss of
HK$130,947,000 (2009: HK$176,691,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to shareholders of HK$229,463,000
(2009: HK$61,612,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 286,789,000 shares (2009 (restated):
37,027,500 shares) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of the basic loss per share for the year of
2010 has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the capital
reorganisation effected subsequent to the end of 2010 (see
note 36).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in
the calculation of the basic loss per share for the year of 2009
has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the rights issue
effected subsequent to the end of 2009 and further restated
to reflect the impact of the capital reorganisation effected
subsequent to the end of 2010.

Diluted loss per share

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, as there
was an anti-dilutive effect after adjusting for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted loss per share was
the same as the basic loss per share.

T R L

BRES

BREAXEE
BRERNBEDNEZREREGFEFANES
18229,463,0008 0 (ZEZE L 4 -
61,612,000 ) K FRNE ETT
286,789,0000% (= EENF (E3) -
37,027,5008%) L@ INEFHEETE

HE T -EFECERERNEBEARER
o B mnET IR EFEHAE
NRBHR=ZZE—SFEETZRAER
Z 2 (RMsE36) -

HEZETNFEZEREABERR
Mz ERBRMEFOREEELAE:
M&%F_YyhiéLﬁz1%Z%
Z UWKE—THEINURBRR_ZF—F
FRETCRAER 2 FE-

BREEER
BE_Z-ZER_ZTZTNAF+_H
=t- Eiif RN FEEMEAE
BEYECEBENTERIEKRRE
%?%ﬁﬁ#k%é%ﬁﬁ#%%$%
BAER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 —ZE—ZF F3# 75




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY &

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. ¥ BERRE

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMEEE BRARRZE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT
Carrying amount fﬂﬁﬁﬁ
At beginning of year 2009 RZZEZNES] 131 539 1,646 2,316
Additions NE - 5 - 5
Disposals HE - (47) (84) (131)
Depreciation e (131) (159) (696) (986)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNE
+-A=+—-1H - 338 866 1,204
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+-F=+-8
Cost %S 1,247 952 2,219 4,418
Accumulated depreciation 2EtE (1,247) (614) (1,353) (3,214)
- 338 866 1,204
Carrying amount IREE
At beginning of year 2010 NZE—TFH) - 338 866 1,204
Additions NE - 74 - 74
Disposals HE - ) - )
Depreciation neE - (193) (674) (867)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF
+=ZA=+-H - 217 192 409
At 31 December 2010 WZE—ZF
+-A=+—H
Cost XA 1,247 1,016 2,219 4,482
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,247) (799) (2,027) (4,073)
- 217 192 409
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 1. ABE QAT 2R
The interest in the associates is set out below: RERE ARz EmEHF T
As at
31 December
As at 31 December 2010 2009
i
—ZTNE
+-A
R-ZB-Z5+=A=+-H =t-8
Golden Tianjin
Fame Kai Sheng Total
& RETEB @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THx T THT FHET
Share of net assets EiLEEFE 33,012 3,475 36,487 103,601
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEZHE - - - 91,993
Impairment loss REBE - - - (158,500)
33,012 3,475 36,487 37,094

Details of the principal associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

REHERBZ T EBE

T

Proportion of

NEIFB

registered
capital and
Principal place of voting power
operation/Place of held by
Name of associates Form of business incorporation the Group Principal activities
X&EE
TEEENY/ FRERERR
BELRER £BER 1A AR S 3t B REBFELH TEEH
Tianjin Kai Sheng Automobile Service  Incorporate PRC 50% Provision of repair service
Co. Limited (“Tianjin Kai Sheng”) for automobile and
distribution of Nissan
motor vehicles
RETIBAERBER el HE 50% RESERERBER
([REmHZ]) PHBERE
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Proportion of

M. RBERRI 2R (&)

registered
capital and
Principal place of voting power
operation/Place of held by
Name of associates Form of business incorporation the Group Principal activities
XEE
TEEEHY FRIMErR
BeNFEM EBEA I B 3L 3t B SREMGLH FTEEK
Golden Fame International Incorporate Hong Kong 40% Logistic business
Investment Group Limited
("Golden Fame”)
TERIRELE EE B 40% MRES
BRRA(T2E])

Summary of financial information of associates are as follows:

BEMENmZMBEMBENT

Golden Fame Tianjin Kai Sheng Tinhua (note a) Total
% RETHE RZ (Kita) @it
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-%F C"TTNF ZB-BFf C_ITTNF <ZB-BF _TTNF <-B-BF _TITNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TET FHT THEx FHT THx THT T
Share of associates' assets EEBEAREEREH
and liabilities
Non-current assets HRBEE 28,891 29,770 21,458 20,879 - 40,036 50,349 90,685
Current assets RBEE 106,462 89,225 37,340 48,726 - 13,506 143,802 151,457
Non-current liabilities FRHERE (23,158) (22,549) - - - - (23,158) (22,549)
Current liabilities nBEE (66,538) (54,002) (51,098) (63,284) - (426)  (117,636)  (117,712)
Non-controlling interest FERER (12,645) (8,034) (4,225) (3,673) = - (16,870) (11,707)
Share of associates’ revenue and ~ FE{HESE A AW RER
profit
Revenue s 316,127 219,120 216,855 165,352 - - 532,982 384,472
Profit (Loss) wfl (5E) 603 3,689 790 (1,013) - - 1,393 2,676
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Investment in Tinhua Excel Way Special Fiber
(Xintai) Company Limited (“Tinhua")

Reference is made to the annual report of year 2009,
interim report of year 2010 and related announcements.
The Group had invested in Tinhua by acquiring two
subsidiaries, Excel Way Investments Limited (“Excel
Way"”) and Shinning Global Worldwide Limited
(“Shinning Global”), at an aggregate consideration
of HK$158,500,000. Due to the lengthy administrative
process for a bank in granting banking facility to
Tinhua, the required liquidity to meet the working
capital requirement for the commencement of Tinhua's
production has been adversely affected. Up to 31
December 2009, the Group had not yet injected the
last instalment of capital of US$3,100,000 due to the
uncertainties involved in the operations of Tinhua. The
Group believed that such uncertainties arisen would
in turn increase the risk exposure of its investment
in Tinhua. The directors were of the opinion that the
possibility of recovering the residual value from the
investment in Tinhua was low and a full impairment
loss of HK$158,000,000 was made in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Given the unforeseeable prospect of Tinhua's business,
management has appointed provisional liquidators
to voluntarily liquidate Excel Way. A Statement of
Voluntary Winding Up and the Notice of Appointment
of Provisional Liquidators were filed with the Company
Registry on 14 April 2010 and the commencement of the
voluntary liquidation process has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement on 15 April 2010. Pursuant
to High Court Order on 31 May 2010, joint and several
liquidators had been appointed and as at the end of the
reporting period, Excel Way is still under the winding up
process.

The Group had ceased to exercise significant influence
over Tinhua following Excel Way’'s appointment of the
provisional liquidators and therefore Tinhua is no longer
treated as an associate of the Group.

T R L

M. RBE QT 2R (&)
(a) RREBBIBESE (FR)ERA

A(TREZRE
BHRE—_FTTAFFR
—EFHRHBRERBBA QM-
AEEDERWEMENERF
BEEREEERAR(IER]) R
Shinning Global Worldwide Limited
(Tshinning Global |) & & 7 X
# . 48 {8 /158,500,000 7T °
RIBTERERDEITEEANE
TRZITBRERF S RXERS %ﬁ
REECIEARARAEER ZE
Ee— %xlfﬂ%goaﬁ:?
ZENF+_A=+—H1E A%H
W EEH & 1% —H3)E & 3,100,000
T RERKREZEENSRTEE
AZ-AEBERE HRZETHE
Eﬁ%@%M$%@%%¥Z&§
CEERA ARAAYKER

%%2&%2ﬂ%f@27ﬁ&?
XN EAmMEREE_ZTTAF+=
A=+ BLEFEZEAUBRE

W EH1E 2 EUR (B B 18158,000,000
BT

ERREEK 2 THA S B
EBEZIREEEALEEETE
FER N -_E—SEPA+INE -
Q@J ﬁ%ﬁ%L &é{fﬁunﬂ‘r/%ﬂ
ANBHNECEZXFRAGEME -
miARRHBEA-ST—Z4A
THABZAMAEE B8)581E
FE@E%O@?E%E*%*E
FREAZ+—BzaEEiRH#%
HEANMERNEBACEZT MY
WMEMBERB BRDERSSRE
Frep e

RERRTEERTRAR A&H
ETBHRETEEAREN &
RETHERA/AEBEZHBER
o
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) M. RBERR 2R (&)
(a) Investment in Tinhua Excel Way Special Fiber (a) RAEBHISESSE (FR)ERD
(Xintai) Company Limited (“Tinhua”) (Continued) A(TRE)Z2®RE (&)
In February 2011, Tinhua received a demand notice from MRZTE——F A REEEH
the State Administration of Industry and Commerce BRIHTHREERRBMRE NTIE
of the PRC for the remaining capital injection of 3,100,0003€ 7t (23,910,000% 7T )
US$3,100,000 (HK$23,910,000) for which the amount BHEGEN - BESEDLAR
had already been recorded in accrued charges and other JE T B A I H b JE A iR SR AR (B
creditors (note 20). Taking into consideration the current F20) o FBEERB 2N EER
status of Excel Way, the directors are of the opinion that RENREZREEB AR TS
the exposure associated with the investment in Tinhua HAREE G BEmcE—TIE
would not give rise to any further material financial P E R B E -

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

12. GOODWILL 12. BE
As at
31 December
As at 31 December 2010 2009
RZZZNE
R-2-8¥+-A=1-H TZA=+-H
Natural
Harvest Total
Leapfly BA @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAL
Carrying value REE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAF 20,000 55,000 75,000 75,000
Less: Impairment loss A OREBE (20,000) (55,000) (75,000) (75,000)
At end of the reporting period REEHERA - - - -
A full provision for impairment losses have been made in the REEE B FEUEE Leapfly Limited & B A%
goodwill arose on the Group's acquisition of Leapfly Limited EERARMEEAZEHEELZERE
and Natural Harvest Investment Limited. E R -
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T R L

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BEEE
Forestry
rights
ity FE
HK$'000
FHT

Reconciliation of carrying amount REHEEHIR-BE_Z—ZF
- year ended 31 December 2010 TZBE=+—HLEFE

Acquisition during the year FAUE 82,500
Amortisation B aH (1,242)
Impairment loss VEREN R (12,258)
At end of the reporting period REBEBRERE 69,000

At 31 December 2010 R-ZFE—FF+-_A=+—H
Costs (DN 82,500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses ZEr R REREE (13,500)
69,000
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B %% R MY &

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
9 April 2010. The Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of a company, Richful Zone International Limited
("Richful Zone") which owns the rights to (i) obtain 50% of
the interests in the concession rights and forestry contracts
in respect of three forestry sites in Simao District, Puer City,
Yunnan Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
and (ii) share 50% of distributable profits of these forests. The
Group has neither significant influence nor joint control over
the forestry operations.

At the date of acquisition, the fair value of these rights
attributable to the Group was approximately HK$82,500,000,
which was determined based on the professional valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer, B.I.
Appraisals Limited, on the market approach with reference
to prices recently paid for similar assets. As at 31 December
2010, the fair value of the forestry rights attributable to the
Group was estimated to be approximately HK$69,000,000
which is determined based on the professional valuation
conducted by B.I. Appraisals Limited under the same market
approach which decrease in the value was mainly resulted
from the tree-cutting activities carried out during the period.
The directors are of the opinion that a provision of impairment
loss amounting to HK$12,258,000 should be recognised so
as to reflect the recoverable amount of the future economic
benefits that the forestry rights can generate, having taken
into consideration the respective value in use.

The term of forestry land use rights and forestry trees
entitlement of these three forestry sites are 50 years from 8
January 2010 to 7 January 2060, according to the re-issued
forestry land use rights and ownership rights issued by the
PRC local government.
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EU R ARRAMA—T—TFMA
NBZRMH - AEBERE-—FHARLHE
SRERAR (T8E]) 22 A BT
A QEHA AT SIBER : (VEUG T E
ARKANE ([HE]))EFEEETESY
B = A A TR R MRS 40 250%
R R (D16 % F M 250% Al 79 K
Z%Tiﬂ AEERMEEBLY BEATE
H AR I

REEz R ANEBEREZSEMNZA
B #) /82,500,000 7T TR I B 3L
EEHEMRNERTFHERARLR
ZHUEESIZRZEREBERTS
FETZBEEMEMEE R
F+ZA=+—HB AEBEEEKME
2 A F{E T 49 /569,000,0005 7T 0 TY
EKEARBBEERIEERQFRER—™
AR EEMEMET - EERK
TEREBMABTZONEBDMB -E
ERA LEESEFEREE  RAEBE
7 #512,258,000/% JTFE T RERR - LA R
MORRER] BE A 2 AR RAEE R 25 2 p] I e
SE
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T R L

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14. AL EMBEE
The Group The Company
iy | PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENE —E-2f —TTNhE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
324 FHT FHL FHT FEL
At cost BRA
Unlisted equity interest REBHIZ
outside Hong Kong ELEmRTER 6,908 6,908 6,908 6,908
Unlisted equity interest REEZF LTRAE
in Hong Kong B 25,000 25,000 - -

Unlisted investment in a REBRGN—HER
limited partnership outside ~ EFAB AR

Hong Kong kEmRE 14(a) 60,512 - - -
92,420 31,908 6,908 6,908
Impairment loss recognised 2R 2 A (EEE (31,908) (31,908) (6,908) (6,908)
60,512 - - -
The unlisted investments represented long-term investments FELMIEERERILAERBEITZIELT
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. They are BAES 2 RBARE -HRFELTRE
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting CEBANFEGEFHEERARN EERA
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is BARM MG EEATE NSRS
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their HERBRKANRERERTE -

fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

14(a) Unlisted investment in a limited partnership

Reference is to made to the Company’s announcement
dated 17 August 2010. Pursuant to partnership
agreement with the lead investor (“Lead Investor”)
and certain limited partners dated 17 August
2010, the Group agreed to acquire 22.22% equity
interest in AITS L.P. ("AITS"), which controls a
group of companies engaged in the manufacturing
of automotive components, for a consideration
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$78,000,000). The consideration shall be settled in
two phases upon issuance of the drawndown notice
by the general partner of AITS. The first payment
amounting to approximately US$7,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$60,512,000) was paid in August
2010. The balance of approximately US$2,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,289,000) may be
called by the general partner as required to fund the
activities of AITS and its subsidiaries. Up to the date of
this annual report, no drawndown notice for second
payment was served by the general partner.

Pursuant to the partnership agreement, a Tag Along
Offer will be made by the Lead Investor, in the
circumstance that the Lead Investor proposes to
dispose of any of its units in AITS to a purchaser, an
offer to other limited partners to dispose of a pro rata
share of their units in AITS to the purchaser at the
same price and on the same terms as the proposed
disposal by the Lead Investor will also be made, subject
to compliance with mandatory regulatory conditions by
the relevant limited partner.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A R 2 7

14 JHHEEMBKEE (£)

U R—EEREEEB QAR ZFELT

rE
EHRAARFEHA-_T %
FNA+TEBEZAMH-BRER=-Z
—ZFENAt++LtHEREERES
(ZEEREE ) RETEREMR
BRANF L zERE ANEER
BUEEAITS LP. (TAITS])22.22%
I A #E % - X {8 A10,000,0003 7T
(H %M 478,000,000 7T ) ° AITS
EH A ERERET G2
NaE HREBERATSZEBEZA
BEREHANES MBI -BE
SKIE 47,800,000 T (HHER A
60,512,000 ) ER =T —=F
NAZH - EREBATRERE
B B 41 8258 492,200,000 7T (HHE
A #917,289,0007 7T ) © BAITSKEH
MEARZZHREES HEAR
FHREH TRABALEELSE
CERBE I EHBA-

BIEAEHE WEHEREEER
HEET@WATSESEMN T —RE
R BEBEREEAZBEMER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T R L

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 AIRHERBEE (&)

(Continued)
14(a) Unlisted investment in a limited partnership Ba)R—EERETEBLATAZIELT
(Continued) BE (&)

In addition, Drag Along Option has been granted
to the Lead Investor in the same agreement
aforementioned. If the Lead Investor proposes to
dispose of all its units in AITS under a bona fide arm’s
length offer to a transferee, it has the option to require
the limited partners to sell all their respective units in
AITS to the transferee at a price not lower than the
price which the Lead Investor offered to the transferee.

Pursuant to the partnership agreement, as a limited
partner, the Group shall take no part in the conduct or
management and shall have no right or authority to act
for AITS or take any part in or in any way to interfere
in the conduct or management of AITS. From the
inception of contemplating the investment plan in AITS
up to the date of these financial statements, the Group
has no intention to participate in the operations of
AITS and solely treat it as a passive investment looking
to the long term appreciation of value so as to retrieve
future benefits from the investment. Accordingly, the
investment in AITS is classified as available-for-sale
investment. Taken into consideration that the equity
interest in AITS does not have a quoted market price in
an active market, the directors are of the opinion that
the fair value cannot be reliably measured. As a result,
the Group's investment in AITS, together with the Tag
Along Offer and the Drag Along Option that are linked
to such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less impairment.

geoh - BB RB R IR EER A
ERLEEEEE - WEEEKRE

ERBRB-BEARFZELNM
—RFERALEHMBATSES S
1 EEREERBREEERE
@fEA%A&WfTﬁF%%&
BERETZABEREAZEBIE @A
FEANBEESB ZFIEATSES
B o

BiEE®mE B8R ME@%EA
BABOHEBRE AEETE
AlTSZ & 8 o B 12 - ﬁﬂ%ﬂ&&
R FAITSTT %&/AXMEHE
N FEATSZEELEE-BHIF]
AITSZIR BT EIEBREZ ST B
ﬁ%a% AEBEEELHEANTSZ
B ARG s R ASRKREEE
ZW@&évaEEéﬁ&§$E
Flo Et - RAITSZ IR E W D BT
HHERE - ERRAITS Z IR A
mIWEERMISGmE EFR
BEEASEMGEENTE Bt
REBRATSZ IR EEREZE®
RERANT ARG IBEEZHORE
ERERYIERKANBRBETZ-
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 4. THHENBEE (&)
(Continued)
14(a) Unlisted investment in a limited partnership Ba)R—BEERETEBATZIELT
(Continued) BE (&)
Particulars of the equity investee are as follows: BRAEZRERAIZFBRAT

Proportion of
the nominal value of
issued Participating

Company name Place of incorporation Class of share held Share held by the Group
FEBEFREERT
NAER M B 3L it B Fir 45 1% 19 38 5 2HERMzEELLS
AITS L.P. Cayman Islands A Units 22.22%
REHS AEE S B

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. REBRRR A FERE 2%

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2010 2009
—2-%5 —TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T

Held for trading equity securities BEEE-EBLTRAFES
listed in Hong Kong

At beginning of year RE ) 273,919 98,748
Additions A 682,508 311,080
Disposals & (430,593) (162,748)
Fair value adjustments NFEEFAE (132,831) 26,839
At the end of the reporting period MR E LR H 393,003 273,919

Designated upon initial recognition RERAEABREEIEZ

unlisted convertible notes FETABRBREE
Acquisition during the year FANE 42,041 -
Fair value adjustments NEERE 16,280 -
At the end of the reporting period R E B AE R H 58,321 -
Total #Et 451,324 273,919
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T R L

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. AERIIRRAFEREE MK
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) EE(#&)
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on quoted ETRAESZ AFETRIERSE B
market prices in active markets at the end of the reporting RAEERMSMmoMETE-
period.
At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's RMEBERA NEBREBRIRIERD
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss exceeded VTEREUBEESRBRERNEER
10% of the Group’s total assets. In addition, the Group's BEZ10% N REEBREERES
shareholding in each of the investees did not exceed 20% of ZRETEBAZERKETEBITR
the issued shares of the investees. 7220% °
INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RME ARz
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost TR - IREKA - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE UK B B8 A B) kI8 1,856,907 1,233,774
1,856,907 1,233,774
Less: Provision for amounts due from 8% - FEUS B B A B SR IE B R
subsidiaries (1,038,176) (913,848)
818,731 319,926
The amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, non- FEY FER B ARSI A EEER RS
interest bearing and the settlement of which is neither B8 BUWmBE ISR AR AL A
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Bk RIEE o
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY &

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2010 were as follows:

B AR 2 (&)

NN e Y= N

R-E—EF+ =

A=+—BZHEMEET:

Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BERITRARE
WELAREE HBAYL EEhY BE/ZMEER  RAAFMBEREIEEEIL FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# &
Allied Loyal International British Virgin Islands Us$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited
KBRS 50,000% 7T REZK
Crown Creation Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
KBRS 1%7T REZK
Forefront Automotive Services Hong Kong HK$20 - 100% Trading of motor vehicle
Company Limited accessories
BRAARERBERAR EE 208 7T RETRMES
Forefront Finance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 - 100% Money-lending
BHHBERAF BE 2,000,000 7T &
Forefront International Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Provision of
(Hong Kong) Limited Ordinary share management services
HK$6,000,000 for the Group
Non-voting
deferred shares (i)
Bh(BE)ERRR Eik 100,000 7T & 1 it RAASERHER RS
6,000,0007% 7
BREEELRR()
Great Journey Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Investment holding
KBRS %7 REZKR
Harvest Peace Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
KBRS %7 REZKR
Leapfly Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
KBRS %7 REZKR
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RMMB ARl 2R (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

Percentage of
equity interest held

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ERTRAR
WELREH A, 5 BE/EMEEX ARTFBERIEZAIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE &

Loyal Fine Ltd British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% - Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Loyal Castle Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Natural Harvest Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding

BAREBRAA RERLES (E REZKR

Pan Fortune Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Ready Capital Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Regent Square Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Richful Zone International Limited British Virgin Islands US$17,478,973 - 100% Investment holding

EHRRER AT RERLES 17,478, 973% T REZKR

Shinning Global Worldwide Limited British Virgin Islands Us$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES 10,0005 7T REZKR

Sino Wealthy Ltd British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Trading of securities
RERLES (E EHEE

Smart Oriental Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E REZKR

Suntrend China Ltd Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding

HMAPEARAT EiE BT REZKR

Talenteam Development Limited British Virgin Island US$10,000 - 61.25% Investment holding

BRERBRAA RERLES 10,0005 7T REZKR
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

(i) Holders of deferred shares have no rights to vote at general meetings or

receive any dividend. Upon winding up, they are entitled to one half of
the balance of the company’s assets after HK$100,000,000,000 has been

distributed to holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any

time during the year ended 31 December 2010.

17. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to

repayment schedules. The balance comprises loans receivable

16.

17.

RBRR 2= (F)

GEE

(i) BRIERGO 2 HEANEBERIREAS LRE
TRER BT R R - BB R ARE
E #100,000,000,0007% 7015 & % AR 9k
FEBRZBFEEA MBEZ —FHETR
MZHBEAEER-

EHBANRBE-F T+ -7
=+—BIEFENEASELRETD
BITHEAR

FE U & =X
ERANER 2 ERARBERGHRKRE
B-BREREERETIET 2EK

s EL .

from: B
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3T THE T FETT
(Restated)
(&3)
Third parties F= (a) 241,388 61,553
Allowance for doubtful debts ROR A (b) (90,817) (1,471)

Balances due within one year EEARBEE -R—FR

included in current assets R HA 2 ek (b) 150,571 60,082
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17. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, (1) loans receivable carry effective
interest rate ranging from prime rate minus 2% to prime rate plus
2% (2009: prime rate); (2) loan balance of HK$1,447,000 (2009:
HK$1,471,000) was overdue and fully impaired; (3) the remaining loan
balances of HK$239,941,000 (2009. HK$60,082,000) are within the
respective maturity dates (2009: within maturity dates); (4) loan balances
of HK$162,151,000 are secured by the borrowers’ net interests in their
account maintained with a broker (2009: HK$60,028,000); and (5) loan
balance of HK$77,790,000 (2009: HK$Nil) is unsecured.

The movement of allowance for doubtful debts is analysed as follows:

T R L

17. BWE K (&)

GEE

(@ MNBEHERB - (NEWRERZBHER =X
NFHBEFE ﬂzf %i%u%ﬂuz@
(ZEENF REBFF)  QBEREH
1,447,000 7T (= F ;J‘Mﬁr 1,471,000
BIL)TVBHANITERERE: QBT

B4 $£239,941,00008 7T ( — FEE A 4 -
60082000/575)1’]3%31\@3}1(77 TN E:
A E) (4B & #2162,151,0005% 7T 5

LAE ZA :n%i«%amﬁ)fmszéé‘ TEFER
(ZFFN4F 160,028,000 ) + P (5)E K
#8277,790,0008 T ( —FZENF - FET)
REIEE .

(b) RIEBBESHOFTLOT :

2010 2009

—E-2F —ZTTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Balance at beginning of year FEH 4 1,471 44,240
Increase in allowance BB M 89,370 -
Amount recovered B U Bl & %8 (24) (42,769)
90,817 1,471

The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end
of the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers’ past
collection history and current creditworthiness. Based on the assessment
with reference to the collaterals secured by the borrowers on the secured
loans and the financial position of the borrower of the unsecured loan
the collectability of loans receivable amounting to HK$90,817,000 was
in doubt and additional provision amounting to HK$89,370,000 was
made for the year accordingly (2009: write-back of HK$42,769,000).
In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication of deterioration in
the collectability of the remaining amount of HK$150,571,000 (2009:
HK$60,082,000) and thus no additional allowance was considered

necessary.

EERBEHERALRBIERABE ZERLHE
LB 2 RRE @R T W e El e % -
RELBEARARCERERERZERRRE
ERERERAZFBAHRIEH 2 5Tl BURE R
90,817,000/ 7T 2 AJ YR [B1 12 & A &E - Bl M AR F 2
B B FE BB M 1889,370,000/8 7T (= EENF -
#E[E142,769,000;E T ) - EE R R I IR TR
[E1#4%8150,571,000% 7T ( ZEZE /4 - 60,082,000
) EEBREE EAEEEINEE -
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18. OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. HittEEW FIE
The Group The Company
by NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —LTNE —E-BF —LENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TR TR
Deposits, prepayments and &e BNFEREM
other debtors JE IR 51 19,220 6,929 583 290
Due from an associate fEl — M2 DRI - 5,065 = -
Dividend receivable from an associate ~ JEM— B LA IR E 1,200 2,000 = -
20,420 13,994 583 290
Included in other debtors is an amount of HK$16,422,000 Hih B IR BIEEW — 2B H&EL
(2009: HK$NIl) receivables from a securities broker of which FIE16,422,00087C ( —EZEN F &
the settlement term is two days after trade date. L) REFBEREHNARISAHEM
E' o
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. ReRASEEY
The Group The Company
bS] YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —TTNE —E-Bf% “EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEL TR
Bank balances and cash RITEFRAE 131,342 134,610 129,783 90,807
Pledged deposits BERAER - 558 - 558
As stated in consolidated REEBRERERIIT
statement of cash flows 131,342 135,168 129,783 91,365
Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily RITEEFERESHETERMNERILEH
bank deposit rates. IR BREUF B -
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20. OTHER PAYABLES 20. HibENFRIE
The Group The Company
x&E NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF% ZTENE “E-ZF “EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TER RN
Accrued charges and other BT B A REMERIER
creditors 29,820 4,454 2,963 1,390
Due to an associate (note 11(a))  JERTEEZ A FF0E
(M&11) - 24,149 - -
29,820 28,603 2,963 1,390

Included in other creditors is an amount of HK$23,910,000
payable to Excel Way as more fully described in note 11(a).

EMHENRRBIEEMN SR 2 KE
23,910,000/ 7T (FE R BHIFE11(a)) °

21. ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE BONDS 2. ZEERETRRES
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Liability component BERS
At beginning of year REA] 84,461 -
Addition N 28,028 141,175
Issuance costs BITRA - (2,154)
Amortisation of effective interest BHERF S 1,286 762
Exercise of conversion rights T s (113,775) (55,322)
At end of the reporting period REBEHEER - 84,461
Equity component ERdo
At beginning of year REH] 23,230 -
Addition #n 10,472 68,825
Issuance costs BEITRAR = (595)
Exercise of conversion rights TP EE i (33,702) (45,000)
At end of the reporting period RBEHERA - 23,230
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21. ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

On 17 December 2009, the Company had issued certain
zero coupon convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) to certain
independent third parties at an aggregate principal amount
of HK$110,000,000 bearing no interest. The Bonds are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company, the whole or
any part of the principal amount outstanding, at conversion
price of HK$0.55 per share and have a maturity of 2 years
from the date of issue. In accordance with the terms of the
bond instrument, an option is attached to the bond. Upon
exercising the conversion rights within 12 months from the
date of issue of the Bonds, a converting bondholder shall be
granted the option by the Company to subscribe, in cash at
100% of their principal amount, for an aggregate principal
amount of optional bonds equal to the principal amount of
the Bonds being converted by that converting bondholder on
the relevant occasion. Accordingly, the maximum aggregate
amount of additional Convertible Bonds in respect of which
Options might be granted was HK$110,000,000.

The fair value of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were determined at issuance of the
Bonds. The fair value of the liability component was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bonds. The residual amount represents the value of the equity
conversion component.

On 10 February 2010, the conversion price of the Bonds was
adjusted from HK$0.55 per share to HK$0.339 per share in
relation to the rights issue pursuant to the anti-dilutive effect
clause as set out in the bond subscription agreement. On 11
February 2010, the Company received conversion notices from
the bondholders to request for the conversion of the Bonds
and 324,483,760 shares were issued at the conversion price
of HK$0.339.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &

21.

ZERTBRRES (&)

R-ZZEZAFE+-_A++LH KAQF
METBLE - FETASBREE
110,000,000 T kPt E2ETZEER
AR ES ([EF]) - EHF P AEIRE
BAR0.558 7T 2 MF D KREE
AeBMERAARRALBER BHEHAAR
BITABRH AEMF -RIBESHIEZ
1R BB ANMES - WMRNEF BT
AREFH12ME B N7 s - s
ZEHEFBEANBERRAG R TEERE:
A AR S EE100% 2 30 & RE RS B EEE
ERETEBR 2EHFBEARBRIEBER
THER s EFERSB I EEEES
Hit - P RAI R EEE ZEINTR
I &% 42 & A % 4110,000,00078 7T ©

BESD MESEREO 2 FEIR
BTESFKET -ABEHMO ZRFET
ERRE 2R BRESRZTIHH X
B-MpEELEaBBREY 2BE

RZE—ZF_A+H BEHF2ERE
ERERBEBRESREDEASE 2 /HE
B EENHTROSSETAERETR
03398 -R_TE—FF_H+—H"
AARWHEAFAEAZTLE 2EBHRE
MEKERES MARFERERE
0.33978 03 17324,483,760/% % 15 °
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ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)

In addition, certain bondholders of the Bonds have exercised
their options to subscribe additional bonds amounting
to HK$38,500,000 which have also been converted into
113,569,316 shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.339. On 29 July 2010, the conversion price of the
Bonds was further adjusted from HK$0.339 per share to
HK$0.322 per share in relation to the share placing pursuant
to the anti-dilutive clause as set out in the bond subscription
agreement. The remaining options to subscribe additional
bonds amounting to HK$71,500,000 were lapsed on 16
December 2010. There were neither convertible bonds nor
option to subscribe for convertible bond outstanding at the
end of the reporting period.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF Scheme”) which is
a defined contribution scheme managed by independent
trustees. The assets of the fund are hold separately from those
of the group companies and are managed by independent
professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

Contributions of approximately HK$150,000 (2009:
HK$175,000) were made during the year ended 31 December
2010.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit scheme in future years (2009: Nil).

21.

22.
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ZERTBRRES (&)

N ETFTEAFBEARITHEEEERE
LA 52 8838,500,000/8 T 2 58 HMNE & -
WO EHEB039B LB 2 EHR A
113,569,316 AR AR M - KR ZFE—F
FLtAZTNAB BEHE2EREDHR
NEEREESFRBREMB o REE
XA ER0339B THE —FHAEEE
[%0.322/%8 7T o 82 T~ A] 3R #& 71,500,000/
TZBEINEF 2 EBRER _Z—FF
FTZATARBERB R ERLERAL
EEMREER 2 AIRRES A RE
MR ES 2 BERE-

REMRETE
AEBETEEBZ QA D2 MAH 1%
NEEEE ([BEEEE]) %8
BB XFEATE 2 TR E - &
CZEERAKEERRZEED R
B YHBYEXRESKEER -RER
EeFE AEE (B MEEEAR
ERHMELATBEEINZRE TBEFA
FEE R EF LSRN EERAS%
HR-BRERE 2T AHNERS1,000
BT BHZHERAEEREE -

AEEREHEE-TE—ZEF+_A=+—
BIEFEELZH34 A150,000% T
CEEAF 1750007 ) °

RZZE—ZF+-A=+—0 KEEL
BEERDRWHKAIHHBRARKEEZ
BRARBNAERR(—FFAF E) -
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. IEEBLIE

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect of
unused tax loss of HK$719,040,000 (2009: HK$484,121,000)
relating to certain Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The

tax losses have no expiry date under current tax legislation.

The deferred tax asset has not been recognised due to

uncertainty of its recoverability.

AEFETESREAE TR EBZM
KL z2WBARZ A HAMEBEEIE
719,040,000 L (= EF N F -
484,121,000, 7T ) EREEFRAE EE -
RIEIRTHOEL - BIBBELEERA A -
EFERE I8 & A B R ae b 5T ol Y El 14 m ok

TR -
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. B A&
2010 2009
“E2-%F ZEENE
No. of shares No. of shares
Re#E G
'000 HKS$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TEL Tk FEL

Authorised: BE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREBEI0GETZERR

At beginning of year RER 50,000,000 5,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000

Increase in authorised share capital & T R I = = 40,000,000 4,000,000
Atend of the year HER 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEI10E T LB
At beginning of year RER 439,384 43,938 936,358 93,636
Issue of shares on rights issue (note a)  fIREF BT (Fif5Fa) 1,098,461 109,846 - -
Issue of new shares (note b) BITHR (H5Eb) 2,040,988 204,099 565,258 56,526
Issue of shares under share options REBRETE

scheme (note c) {7t (B3Ec) 43,939 4,394 168,990 16,899
Shares issued on conversion of zero BB TEEARRELE

coupon convertible bonds B 324,484 32,448 526,316 52,631
Shares issued on conversion of SMEREREFNETRD

optional bonds 113,569 11,357 - -
Capital reorganisation BAER - - (1,757,538) (175,754)
At end of the reporting period REEHERA 4,060,825 406,082 439,384 43,938
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 25 September 2009, rights shares of 1,098,461,165
were allotted to successful applicants at HK$0.28 each on 17 February
2010.

On 26 April 2010, the Company issued 330,000,000 shares at an issue
price of HK$0.24 per share to Mascotte Holdings Limited, a 14.04%
shareholder of the Company after the issuance, as consideration to
acquire a company which held forestry rights located in Yunnan Province,
the PRC (notes 13 and 28).

On 19 May 2010, the Company issued 400,000,000 shares at an issue
price of HK$0.15 per share to Willie International Holdings Limited, a
17.1% shareholder of the Company after the issuance, as consideration
to acquire a company which held a 20-storey composite building located
at Guangzhou City, the PRC (notes 28 and 29).

On 4 May 2010 and 29 July 2010, the Company had allotted and issued
to independent third parties 60,988,080 and 1,250,000,000 shares at
cash consideration of HK$0.22 and HK$0.10 per share, respectively.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed during the year, an aggregate
of 43,938,446 new shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company were issued
to certain individuals under the share option scheme at the exercise price
of HK$0.32 each.

B %% R MY R

24. R (&

GEE

(a)

RZZ2-ZF-_A+tR FRRARBER-F
ZENFANRA-TRRBITZRREI RS &
BB RIRZERRGIR0.28 LMK B
B ARLE 1,098,461, 165 AR AR (7 ©

MNZT—ZTEMA=Z+ XA ARAHEET
EBERO24BTAGHEESEERA AR
330,000,0000% & 15+ 1 /3 4 B8 #5 B G2 1
BEEmEzMAREZ AT ZRE (WE13%
28) RETEERGE FHEEEMARA
R ABREBARDTI4.04%HE 7 BE -

RZF—TFERATABR ARAERTRE
1T1B0.15% JT [ Bk FI B B AR B PR A R & 4T
400,000,000/% f& 17 1E R W BB R B LA
BTz B _+EHGEEEBFZAAZARE
(15128 %29) - RETTABRME - BFIEIRE
ERERARABEAARRANTARER 2 IR
Ho

R_T—ZEZFRANABAR-_ZT—ZTFLA
ZTNB ARARBRBYLE=HERERET
% 560,988,080/% £2.1,250,000,0007% & 15
BeRED R AERR0.228 7T K%0.10# 7T °

RERFRNBBZERRER ARAR
BERESERE TENALETAR
43,938,446/ T B (EO0. 178 T 2 # % - 17 i
BEREK032ET-
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25. SHARE OPTIONS

(a) Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved by shareholders on
6 August 2007 which will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on 6 August 2007.

Under the share option scheme, the Company may grant
to Directors and employees of the Group and any other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group which options
granted shall be immediately vested. The maximum of
shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the new
share option scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue, the General Scheme Limit, at the date
of the passing of the relevant ordinary resolution. If any
options is to be granted to connected person(s), it must
be approved by independent non-executive directors or
independent shareholders as the case may be.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted to a specifically identified
single grantee under the new share option scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &

25. B R

(a)

B

B EAER - HF )\ 5H
EREHE B L FN\AR
B4 BHE104F -

RILBRENS ARA R TE
ZE AEERERESTEERRBE
RAELYLER B ANEEEL TR
ZAEf E 4 A T BN B 57 B 2 BE A%
EoHITERBENERESE R
DRV E A B IR R IR B R
Tz 2 BT INB IR T 21T
2RO EBRERTBBBTREH
TR D BB Z30% - AITEIRIEEE
Be w8 R A A BT ) E A B AR
FrEIEL 22 EREm A BT
i meas XN BBBRAANERE
LTBABRREACBITRMZ10%
(EREEIRE) KRTHEATML
MR A B IEMITE S
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25. SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Under the new share option scheme, the options granted
may be accepted by a participant within 14 days from the
date of such offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. Options
may be exercised at any time no later than 10 years
from the date of grant. The subscription price for shares
payable on exercise of share options granted under the
new share option scheme shall be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall in any event be not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of share.

Movement in share option scheme during the year:

On 26 January 2010, 43,938,000 (2009: 168,990,000)
share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme to qualified participants who are not directors
nor employees of the Group. The share price at the date
of grant is HK$0.31 (2009: HK$0.133). The share price
at the date of grant is the Stock Exchange closing price
on the trading date immediately prior to the date of the
grant of the options. The options were fully exercised on
26 January 2010 and the Company received proceeds of
HK$14 million.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of share option granted at the grant date
was HK$0.00002 per share, which are calculated using
the Black-Sholes model with the following inputs:

Average share price HK$0.31
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.32
Expected volatility 18.54%
Expected life 2 days
Risk free rate 0.003%

B %% R MY R

25. B R
(a) BRMESSE (#)
B ERES S B B
A R2EENENAPRT148 R

(b)

()

BEM-ZABREBREZENRA
XTBTRE - BRERTREL A
HIRE106 WBER 1T - IRIBHN B AR
IR R T R R A
ZENRABEMEFETE HEMT
AERTAIIERTIZ&ESE
(PR ELHBHORR(BEASR
%E)Eﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁtﬁﬁf KT
WHE: (O REEREEOAR
EHHIJETI 2P AEB RS R®RE
KT FHUTHAE R (i ®E
B

FRBERES 228 :
R—_E—FTF—HA_-+/XH K
NAIRBEEREFER TR
AEBESEHEECAERKS A
#43,938,0000 (=ZZEZF N F -
168,990,00017 ) fE B # - % 1 & A
ZREARONEBL(ZEZE/NF:
0.133%r) - B ERZRE TR
MEEBRERLDAHAR %az
B mE-BREERZ
/\i A=+/xH7 %%(TT@E ViN
A A) B M & ER 45 5018 14,000,000
I e

BRELAFERRR
ERHBRENEE R ZATE
/AERX0.0000278 7T » JIIRIE T 511 81
NGl T R i

FHERRE 0.31787T
NEFHITEE 0.32% 7T
T8 HA R 18 18.54%
TEHAB WA 2K

[ e 7 = 0.003%
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25. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 25. B (F)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions () BRELAFERRBR (&)

(Continued)

The exercise price of the share option is HK$0.32 (2009: BREZITEERINZBLT(ZF
HK$0.133) which is the average five days closing prices FEAF 01338 ) TIRHNE
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the option. ERBRERD BRIz ARFEHK

mfEe

The expected volatility is determined with reference T8 HR R hR AS 2 E TR HA B IR AR A
to the historical volatilities of the Company over the KRB ZBELEIRETE °

expected option period.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, HFEANETEZBEBREMS - AT
the share price at the date of exercise is HK$0.31 (2009: FEACRERNABEL(ZEE
HK$0.133). AF 0.133%T) -
26. RESERVES 26. #fE
The Company /N
Zero
coupon Share Capital Capital
Share  convertible option  Contributed Capital ~ Redemption  Accumulated
Premium notes reserve Surplus Reserve Reserve Deficit Total
BER -2 -2
RiEE TRREE  BRERRE £ DN ] EXfE BERE 2t A @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-H 709,566 - - 16,692 4,49 1173 (614,980) 116,943

Transaction with equity holders of the ~ ERRBREEA L BALEKIE
Company recognised directly in equity ~ HBEAETZZS

Issue of new shares, net of expenses BOAK (ENBRER) 35,000 - - - - - - 35,000
Share options granted RERE - - 7,210 - - - - 7,210
Exercise of share options TfERkE 12,788 - (7,210 - - - - 5578
Convertible bonds issued and converted ~ E{TRER AR K ES 47,690 23,230 - - - - - 70,920
Capital reorganisation hrss - - - - - - 175,754 175,754
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (176,691) (176,691)
At 31 December 2009 805,044 23,230 - 16,692 4,492 1173 (615,917) 234,714
A1 January 2010 805,044 2230 - 16,692 1492 VB 6591 234714

Loss for the year
Transaction with equity holders of the
Company recognised directly inequity ~ HAA¥TZR5

_ - - - - - (130,947) (130,947)

Issue of shares, net of expenses BAHR (ENRET) 70,295 - - - - - - 70,295
Issue of shares on rights issues, fREETRR (EARR)

net of expenses 188,977 - - - - - - 188,977
Share options granted RHBkE - - 1 - - - - 1

Issue of shares under share option scheme 13 15 B ki 9,667 - (1) - - - - 9,666
Shares issued on conversion of convertible  ER AT AREFERTRG

bonds, net of expenses (BHBED) 76,528 (23,230) - - - - - 53,298
Issuance of optional bonds (note 21) BITEERHES (M) - 10,472 - - - - - 10,472
Shares issued on conversion of ERERHERSRORN

optional bonds 27,143 (10,472) - - - - - 16,671
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-EF+-A=1-R 1,177,654 - - 16,692 4,492 11713 (746,864) 453,147
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27. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 27. REFTARE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAEIT
Loss before taxation BT AT E 1B (229,463) (61,612)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2B 38 229
Interest income IESS N (114) (351)
Share of results of associates FE(REEE NRIEE (1,393) (2,676)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BmIVEEZRERE 12,258 -
Impairment loss on interest in N—EBE AR Em L
an associate WA EE - 158,500
Amortisation of liability component of AR ES B EE o &
convertible bonds 1,286 763
Net gain on acquisition and disposal of  WE XK HE—HHBARZ
a subsidiary A58 (25,000) -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses T & & # 4553 &2 2,109 986
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - -KER&BE2ESE
equipment 2 -
Share-based payment in respect of BB (FF25) 2
share option (note 25) ARR 9 2 4 2 718 - 7,210
Recognition of bargain purchase on R — B8 2 F) (F5E28)
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 28) RERBEEER (3,262) -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts RIBIREE 89,370 -
Written back of provision for bad and RIZFRBFER D
doubtful debts (24) (42,769)
Changes in working capital: EEEe EY:
Financial assets at fair value RERERATFEREZ
through profit or loss PEEE (177,405) (175,171)
Inventories rE - 6,782
Other receivables H b fE U FE (5,626) 2,871
Other payables H b e RE 1,181 (13,352)
Loans receivable e E R (179,835) 18,416
Cash used in operations REMARE (515,878) (100,174)
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28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity interests

in the following companies.

Name of acquired Place of

28. WK B 2 A

FA-AREBYE T AR Z2EBA

.
s e

Acquisition date companies incorporation Principal activities Consideration
Wi B EWBARER ot 11 B 3L 3t B TEXH RE
HK$'000
FAT
26 April 2010 Richful Zone British Virgin Investment holding 79,200
International Limited Islands
("Richful Zone")
—E-Z CHERARAA RBRAEE REZER
MA=+7<A (rgsl)
19 May 2010 Perfect Time British Virgin Investment holding 60,000
Investments Limited Islands
("Perfect Time")
(note 29)
—Z-ZERA+NHE FERERRDA EBRUES RE R
(I&%1)
(Fff5£29)
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28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 28. WEBKMIB N &l (42)
In respect of the acquisition of Richful Zone, the following HBEEEME  TXHABEBERER
summarises the purchase consideration and the amounts of PEWBEEERCAEABZEE NI
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. No non-controlling BRI EERE IR ER

interest was recognised at the date of acquisition:

HK$'000
FHET
Consideration: RE:
Share issued, at fair value BEETRKRG BATFE 79,200
Total consideration transferred CEERELT 79,200
HK$'000
FHT
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets THNEWBEERCAEEEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed: ERIASHE:
Intangible assets mEAE 82,500
Other payables and accruals HMENFERESER (38)
Total identifiable net assets AEAFEEARE 82,462
Bargain purchase arising on acquisition WEBELEZBREER (3,262)
79,200
The Company issued 330,000,000 ordinary shares as N2 R)E E17330,000,0000% L @A 1E A
consideration for the acquisition of Richful Zone. Richful Wi & i 2 (R (B - i FF A Allied Loyal
Zone holds 100% equity interests in Allied Loyal International International Investments Limited & 5%
Investments Limited, which holds concession rights of the M M RZ A R A BB — SR AR50 %
50% interest in the forestry land and 50% of the distributable a2 R AT RE A K Z AR50 % 2 Rl 53 )R
profits of the forest lands located in the PRC. The fair value Ao LB ITRD 2 R FETIER
of the shares issued for the acquisition was determined by TMiGAERE °

applying a market approach.
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28.

29.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The transaction costs have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. No cost was attributable to the issuance of the equity
instrument.

From the acquisition of Richful Zone, the Group recognised a
negative goodwill of HK$3,262,000 representing the excess
of the Group’s interests in the fair value of the subsidiary at
acquisition date over the consideration of HK$79,200,000.
The bargain purchase is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year. Other than
the bargain purchase, since the acquisition, the acquired
subsidiaries made no significant contribution to the revenue
and results of the Group.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 19 May 2010, the Company issued 400,000,000 ordinary
shares as consideration for the acquisition of Perfect Time.
Perfect Time holds 100% equity interest in Jet Star Industries
Limited, which holds a property in Guangzhou, PRC. The
property is a 20-stores composite building known as Jifu
Plaza.

On 26 May 2010, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Perfect Time to an independent third party at a consideration
of HK$85,000,000. A net gain on disposal of approximately
HK$25,000,000 was recognised during the year.

28.

29.

WM B AR (&)
RHRACFHARA ZERARR 21T
BB 3 7« B 1T AR AR T B 40 4 4 (] A
DN

RUELEME ARECBEREHE
3,262,000 T EASEEEGME R
ARBEERAZAFEZERBLARE
79,200,000 T2z ZFE -BEEFEER
FRFTAGEEERAREAN - REEE
BN BUREEATR - B UREERT B A R
RBAEE 2 WRREETREXNER -

HE—RMEAR
RZZE—ZEFRA+TNE ARAEEH
77400,000,0000% & B A% - 1E BB S 3
CRE-BERFEREBEEBERAAS
g mMZARBEFEEMN—EY
¥-umELEBE_+TEGRAEFT B
EEXRE-

RZE-—ZBERA -+ KXEEHMR
—EBBUE=ZFHEERREZ 2R
%% {8 £85,000,000/8 7T - FRE FER
& 2 F)F BE#4925,000,00078 7T

HK$'000
FET

Fair value of net assets acquired and carrying CWEEFEEZAFER

amount of net assets disposed of: EHEFEEZIREME:

Investment property wEWE 115,060
Property, plant and equipment W BE REB 35
Trade and other receivables JE W 5) iR 7R N2 B fE W ER B 437
Cash and bank balances ReRRITES 636
Accrual and other payables JESHE R M E A fE T FOE (863)
Profit tax payables FE RS HR (582)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEBAE (6,926)
107,797
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 29. HE-—BHELR (£&)
HK$'000
FHT

On acquisition A U B B

Fair value of net assets acquired BWEFEECATE 107,797

Shares consideration issued, at fair value EBRTRORE EATE (60,000)

Bargain purchase recognised EHRIABEEE 47,797

On disposal R ER

Net assets dispose of EHEFEE (107,797)

Cash consideration received EWER S RE 85,000

Loss recognised on disposal HERBER ZER (22,797)

Net gain on acquisition and disposal BWEREEZRRFHE 25,000

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 30 TEHRERS

As more fully explained in note 29, the Group acquired MBS 29T MR AR AEEZRE

the entire equity interest in Perfect Time at a consideration 60,000,000/ 7T 4 8 Iy 35 2 &6 Ax 7S 1

of HK$60,000,000 which was satisfied by the issuance of &= BEEREFSBARARTIEF0.158

400,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.15 per JL 2 17400,000,0000% 37 % % 1+ ©

share.

In addition, as more fully explained in note 28, the Group BESN - GAFT EE28FTRF AR AR - AN EHR X

acquired the entire interest in Richful Zone at a consideration 879,200,000/ 7T Y s & 15 = P 4 25 -

of HK$79,200,000 which was satisfied by the issuance of EERESZBHRARFIEZZR0.24F T

330,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.24 per %£17330,000,000 % 3 i% 37 1+t

share.
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31.

32.

MARGIN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, margin facilities of
HK$195,757,000 (2009: HK$136,337,000) from regulated
securities brokers were granted to the Group under which
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$451,324,000 (2009: HK$273,919,000) were treated as
collateral for the facilities granted. The Group has not utilised
any of these facilities as at 31 December 2010 (2009. HK$Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Alleged agreement on investment in a customer

Mr. Lo Chia Yu (“Mr. Lo
verbal agreement was entered into on 12 March 2002

") has allegedly claimed that a

by his wholly owned company, Global Travel Holdings
Limited (“Global Travel”) and Forefront Automotive Services
Company Limited (“FAS"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, relating to an equity investment by FAS in Global
Travel amounting to HK$7,800,000. FAS's position is that
the agreement was subject to it conducting due diligence
on Global Travel to its satisfaction. As requested, FAS paid
a deposit of HK$2,000,000 to Mr. Lo. Subsequently, the
accounting firm employed by FAS reported unsatisfactory
due diligence, therefore FAS did not elect to proceed with
the alleged agreement. Mr. Lo has filed proceedings claiming
HK$7,800,000 together with alternative damage and FAS
has lodged a counter claim to Mr. Lo for the return of
the HK$2,000,000 paid as deposit. A contingent liability
netting off the counter claims as set out above amounting
to HK$5,800,000 are alleged to be due from FAS to Global
Travel. The matter has not progressed after an initial hearing
and was adjourned to a further date to be determined by
the court subject to its receipt of sufficient documents from
the two parties. The Company has not received any notice in
relation to any specific dates for any further hearing.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &

31.

32.

FRME
W-_Z-—ZTHE+-_A=+—H0 K
EEEXHEBSLLBRETRR
%195,757, 0008 L (ZEE N F -
136,337,000/ 7C) - # it - R iEm IR 1%
NERE & EAS,324,0008 7T
(—FZEF 273,919,000 7T ) 1518 5
EEMEZEBER - R-ZE—ZFF+=
A=+—H AEBETEHHIMZE
BME(ZFEENF )

HREE
R—BEFZRENERHS

BREAMEE([REENEBREL2ER
B 2 72 A)Global Travel Holdings Limited
([ Global Travel]) &A1 7]z 2 &M
BARIEAAERBERAR ([EF
FERBI)R_ZEZT_F=A+=H
R OERE - ER P RETAERE
M Global TravelZ fx#%&7,800,0007%
T BAAERE IS REEENE
W E Y Global Travel 172 R TSRS
AEBE-wAAERBEEERMER T
H A —%#% 42,000,000 T Hi%
EREHRERBRE 2 GETEITHRE
IT % HEBEETER B ERE
EBERTEBEETZERGZE R
%E)\ﬁ%1@7 800,000/ L& R & K18

EEE MEHABEREE AL ER
R RE - BRER B 4£2,000,000

PETC e Bt PRI Eill R RIERIER IR
& 77 /R HE RIS K & Global Travel 2z sk 4
B 1&/45,800,0008 L Ll EER Y
RABTETMER SHEKMERE
EERREREE S EAXHEREZH
ftb B ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ AR EEIER H
EMIEE B BT E A — PR 2
A0
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33. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

As more fully explained in note 14(a), during the year, the
Group entered into a partnership agreement to invest in
a unlisted limited partnership with commitment of capital
injection of US$10 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$78 million). As at 31 December 2010, approximately
US$7,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$60,512,000)
was called and paid up. The remaining approximately
US$2,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,289,000)
would be payable upon receiving instructions from the Lead
Investor.

Commitments under operating leases

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases, which typically run for an initial period of 1-3 years.
None of these leasors includes contingent rentals. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as

B %% R MY R

33. &I

BEAREE

M FE14@)FTEE M F R AEBET
ERHE NREXN—HFELTERE
F& % AR FEAPEF 10,000,000
=7t (FHE R 478,000,000 7T) A —
T-—TF+_A=+—H BEHEHE
B RE A 497,800,000 T (HER
60,512,000/ 7T )  # T 492,200,000
7t (FAE R 4917,289,00078 7T ) #5 7 1 Uk
EHRREEETBIMN-

RERERE
AREBN-—RNF/P-—E=ZF2KE
HEERZEME-AAEELTEHE
FAEE RNIBEHERD AEERT
AEHEERE 2 RKBAENKEZIA
NEHA:

follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T T
Within one year —F R 1,033 269
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRLF (BREREEMF) 91 591
1,124 860
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

during the year the Group had the following significant

related party transactions:

(a)

(b)

3. BAEAERS
BB RER ML HBEEN  AEH
RERNBFTZEABEATISOT

Remunerations of key management personnel: (a) FEEBEAEZ#ME
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T
Employee benefits expenses EBERAMNAX 1,987 2,516

Contributions to defined RERKETEIHERK

contribution schemes 36 36
2,023 2,552

Further details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed in
note 5.

Mr. Zhuang You Dao, the director of the Company, has
given personal guarantee to the Group for a loan of
HK$5,000,000 granted to a subsidiary to finance its loans
to Tianjin Kai Sheng. The loan has been fully repaid on
10 March 2010.

In addition, during the year, Tianjin Kai Sheng advanced
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,416,000) to Mr.
Zhuang which amount has been pledged as a security to
facilitate the associate to obtain banking facilities from
a bank. At the end of the reporting period, the amount
due from Mr. Zhuang was nil upon full settlement of the
banking facilities utilised.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ BB R 2 &

(b)

EEHME — FFBRM W

g o
=

O

RAREEFHRELERET—ME
Fff/B 28] 25,000,000 7T B &K E &
EEFHBARR - ZEERHA
LA % I B A Rl IR it T R 8
BER - BEREN _T—TF=
A+RE&EE-

pEoh s REMNBRFRREEE
244 AR #10,000,0007 (HHER
11,416,000 7T ) * ZERIAC LK
B EAZBE R BBRITZIR
TTRVE 2R - RIREEAR - EUREE
EEZRBEBRBEHREECHAZE
TRVERART -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

On 22 December 2009, additional loan facilities of
HK$12.5 million had been granted to the Tianjin
associate. The facilities are also guaranteed by Mr.
Zhuang, for use in financing the associate’s automobile
distribution business. Following the passing of resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting on 19 January
2010 for approving loan, the Group entered into a
supplemental agreement with the borrower and Mr.
Zhuang on 29 January 2010, pursuant to which all
parties agreed to extend the repayment term of the
loan from six months to one year. On 5 February 2010,
the three parties entered into a termination agreement
and mutually agreed to terminate the loan agreement
and the supplemental agreement and release the deed
of personal guarantee. No cash outflow was incurred in
respect of the loan.

During the year, Mr. Zhuang has given personal
guarantee to a supplier in favour of Tianjin Kai Sheng
for provision of financing facilities in aggregate of
RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to HK$48,406,000) granted
to Tianjin Kai Sheng. In addition, Mr. Zhuang has given
personal guarantee to a bank for granting of a bank loan
of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,613,000) to
Tianjin Kai Sheng. These personal guarantees were still
effective as at the end of the reporting period.

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial instruments are available-for-

sales financial assets, financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, loans receivable, bank balances and cash. The

main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and

maintain finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has

various other financial instruments such as other receivables

and other payables, which arise directly from its business

activities.

B %% R MY R

3. BEALRG (£)

(c)

(d)

RZZEENF+ZA=+=8"
RAEBE RN ERBINERBME
12,500,000 T - 2 EEL & Th 2 &
HEAERBER AUNAZEEAR
A2 REDHEBRRES K=
T—TF—-A+NHZBREFRR
eLBEBABRRIEERE KE
ERERARFLEENR_ZE—FF
— A=+ N BT - I
AAETRERERZERHN
BMACRE—F - R_T—TF—
BRAHBE FIH=FrIKIEHHE I
HERELIEER G R H®
UERBREAERRE - ZZEENR
I IR & 7 o

FR -HEEERREMEE
REZBEFEEAHRHARK
41,000,0007T (48 % #248,406,000
BIL)ARETINB A ZAR—
FHEERE MR AER S 5
EEDRBETREWINE 2 HRT
B H AR#20,000,0007 (HHE R
23,613,000/ 7T ) [M — [ #R. 77 $2 1
B APELR o IE Z 8 AR IR E H
HERAMARBK-

35. B R EE

AEMY EBHBETEATMEEHEG
BE RNBRFRRATEREMBE
EOERER ROEERES HEH
BIBYETERBRNAAEEIELS
ERBBEBE - AEREETHMUHB
TAE MEBAEYBEDELEZE
M 2R I % L e B A RO o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are equity price risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management and limits the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The Board
of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group
also monitors the market price risk arising from all financial
instruments.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
trading of listed securities classified as investments held for
trading in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market
prices had been 5% higher or lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease
or increase by HK$19,650,000 (2009: HK$13,696,000) as a
result of changes in fair value of investments. The Group’s
sensitivity to equity price has changed significantly from the
prior year.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock market index or
other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group’s securities investments would be considered
impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables over the period until the next annual
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2009.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 & B A R 2 7

35. MK EKRERE (£Z)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 35. MK EKRERE (£Z)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The Group has adopted procedures in
extending credit terms to loan borrowers and in monitoring its
credit risk. The credit policy on extending credit terms to loan
borrowers includes assessing and valuing of loan borrowers’
creditworthiness and financial standing. Management also
closely monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the
collectability of loans receivable periodically. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has a concentration of credit risk
as 32% (2009 12%) and 66% (2009: 61%) of the total loans
receivable was due from the Group's largest borrower and the
five largest borrowers respectively.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited
in financial institutions and brokers, which are leading and
reputable and are assessed as having low credit risk. The
Group has not had any significant loss arising from non-
performance by these parties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposures to interest rate risk as its loans
receivable are subject to floating interest rates. However,
cash flow interest rate risk is considered minimal as the loans
receivable have short maturity dates.

The interest rate risk for bank balance exposed is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed in banks with maturing
less than three months.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is not subject to foreign currency risk exposure
since its operations are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

FERR

EERBIEEBAKREE HEREN
$§@ RIE 7 BT ﬁA$$l%ﬁ%
BrzRB AEBERMKE TRFER
BEFERAZEER TEEBEBREE
R - EREFERAGERZEER
ﬁ@%%m&%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁAZﬁ%F
LB HRA - EREENERYERME
%W$W1E&m%$ﬁEWﬁ K2 U
@%ﬁ»mﬁ%%mﬁa'$$l2%m

P EREFBEFEIN (=
ff}zf# 12% ) }66% ( —FZENF :
61% )P RIRBAEBE ZHERERAR
ARERA

AEBREREBLERZFREL 2
SERBRAR FRERZFEREE R
K REGHUL NEE  BEFERE
1é§ﬂﬁﬁ°$’$lt?$jﬁﬂlﬁfﬁ/\:t
TETEEMELEZEREE M
ERHARTTEHRZE IEI/R"

A 2R E b

AEEREREERZFBNETEM
AENEER AT AREEETIEIR
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 35. KRB ER (&)
Liquidity risk MEE £ E R
Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group is unable mEEEREREARERENETERH
to meet its short-terms obligations. Liquidity risk is minimal EfzEB -TBESRERMTEE -
and is managed by matching the payments and receipts T Bl & B R R TR B NIAE 2 -
cycles. The Group's operations are financed mainly through its AEBZEEFTEFAMEITYREESE
business activities. ® o
The maturity profile of the Group’'s and the Company's REBEARABMBEERREHER
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period on HiRE & 4R A6 38 5UA < B BB R 8 51
contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below: U
The Group REH

At 31 December 2010
R-B-ZF+-A=+—H

On Less than Over
Demand 12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
+={8A
RER KA —EHEE HEHNULE @t

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET THET THET THET

Other payables Ho{th fE 3 3R 29,820 - - - 29,820

At 31 December 2009
RZZENF+ZA=1+—H

On Less than Over
Demand 12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
TZ@EA
REX KR —EZRF  #"FME fst

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAET TAET TAET TAET

Other payables Hi e 308 28,603 - - - 28,603
Zero coupon convertible bonds TEEMHRKRESR - - 84,461 - 84,461
28,603 - 84,461 - 113,064
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. MK ERER (£Z)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESERR (£)
The Company b NN

At 31 December 2010
R-E—-Z5+=-A=+—H

On Less than Over
Demand 12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
+=@EA
BRER AR —EZEF HENE @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx

Other payables H o & 5018 2,963 - - - 2,963
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE TP /BB 1 A B 86,905 - - - 86,905
Other payables Hoth & 5018 89,868 - - - 89,868

At 31 December 2009
R-EZNE+-A=+—8H

On Less than Over
Demand 12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
+=@A
mER A —ZhFE  "FENE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Other payables HoAth JE 1 5018 1,390 - - - 1,390
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGNS 47,078 - - = 47,078
Zero coupon convertible bonds TEERAHRRES - - 84,461 - 84,461

48,468 - 84,461 - 132,929
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. UK EBRER (&)
Capital management ERER
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEREAZEMNABREZE B
safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern FELE  WARRTRER AEEE
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages BHEREBWELAE BERAKRR
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including AT E - MR R REE R TR
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital to IHEEENRLEE - BE-E—F
shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce FRZZENFTZA=T—HIEFE
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or WEERE@EZR BERIIEF -
processes during the years ended 31 December 2010 and
2009.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted REBBBEEBHELHABRALE (A
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital. The BB FERAEAERATE)ERE
debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the balance sheet date were e EE B 2 B ML A B R &
as follow: NN
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Other payables H & < 5/ IE 29,820 28,603
Zero coupon convertible bonds TEETHRRES - 84,461
Less: Bank balances and cash i RITHEFRRS (131,342) (134,610)
Net debt E15% 58 (101,522) (21,546)
Total equity & 4B B 890,245 408,397
Debt-to-equity capital ratio BT BRI AN b 5 N/ATEH N/ATT 38
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. K ERER (£Z)

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and
2009.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as held for trading) is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The carrying value of loan and other receivables and other
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2010
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments;

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data;

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.

AVE
FAMBLARRAR -E—FER=
TEAF+-AS+—AZATEER
TAZ S B

REBMISEEEZ M T A (HImEFE
BB ZRAFEDNIRENREHAERA
e mEAE NEEMFMBEEE
ERZTHERE/ENZEAE

ERNMEAMRURAEMEMENREZ
IREERERE/SEELAFERES-

AFEHE
TX2FRATFE B2 M TARS
T-BET-A=+—BZIREE L
PRE S R A ETH (B TA
HEFE] FRT = ERRAFESK
HAE ERSAMBLAZ ATED
BHEBATEN B EARE L R
WABRBEAATFESE B RRT
KEMT :

. BEI- (RERH) EAERDS
PR T A2 §E (RERE)
SHEZATE:

o AR ERERTISTRUME
TAZRE IMBEARBGAER
HEEXERERABETSEE
ZEETEFEZ XFE:

o AR=(HEHR) - EREKREA
HEBWFERABRMIZHEEZ
BETAFTEZRFE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. M A ER (£)
Fair value disclosures (Continued) AFEFRE (&)
Assets measured at fair value R FEGTEZEE

31 December

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“B-%F%
+ZA=+-H & Bl— HBl= HEl=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value RE&HREATE
through profit or loss RIECHBEE
~ Equity securities ~RAES 393,003 393,003 - -
~ Unlisted convertible notes ~ELEmARRER 58,321 - 58,321 -
451,324 393,003 58,321 -
31 December
2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—EENE
+ZA=+—H Bhl— 4l AR =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FTET
Financial assets at fair value REEREATE
through profit or loss REZHBEE
- Equity securities -BAESF 273,919 273,919 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, there REBEEZ -T2 ZFR_FTTNF+ A
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value Zt—HIEFE TERRFEFZER
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair Bl — MBI — 2 EETEE TEEE
value measurements. MEERFEFER=2THE
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36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The chief decision maker has evaluated the performance
of operating segments and to allocate resources to those
segments based on the Group’s internal reporting in respect
of these segments. The executive directors consider investing,
securities trading and provision of financing services are
the Group’s major operating segments which securities
trading and other investing activities were regarded as a
single segment in the financial statements. Segment results
represent the result from each segment without allocation
of finance costs, share of results of associates, net gain on
acquisition and disposal of a subsidiary, impairment loss
in intangible assets and central administration costs. The

B %% R MY R

36. 7 EEESR

TERRAERBAKESEENHE

NEHRE - FEZFP B2 RRARS
BRAIEZENHE -WTESTRA/RE
EHrEBEREHBEREALAEE X
BRENH MBEFEERAMKRER
PRMBERRPEERE— DB - D8
FEESNBRZEE EPLARD KR
BRA EBEBEQARRE KBELRHLE
MEBAR BN FR BEEEZRE
BRRPRITHAAR AT D REE
BEERRANMEEREZTE UHE
TTERD BN E D BRER -

following analysis is the measure reported to chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-Z54+-A=1+—-HLFE

Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
k& BE AREIE st

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TER

Turnover EEH
Net loss on disposal of financial assets at ~ HERBEFIERATE

fair value through profit or loss RE/HMBEEZ
ERFE (30,913) - - (30,913)

Dividend income REMA 2,446 - - 2,446
Interest income from provision of REERRE L

financial services FEHA - 6,764 - 6,764
Total turnover BREE (28,467) 6,764 = (21,703)
Operating results BexE
Segment results NEER (132,987) (83,080) (14,787)  (230,854)
Share of result of associates R =N 1,393
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEZER (2)
Loss attributable to shareholders BRERELEE (229,463)
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36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 36. 2 EER (&)
By business segments REKDE

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+t-A=+t-HLEE

Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
k& BE AEIE st

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TER

Other information Hirg R
Assets BE 597,257 150,731 135590 883,578
— Interest in associates —REBERE ER 36,487
920,065
Liabilities af - - 29,820 29,820
Capital expenditure BARRY - - 74 74
Depreciation and other non-cash FEREMIRERAS
expenditures 130,051 89,371 867 220,289
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance MERSERALAREZESERSEEER
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are mMs MEEEHESRERHREDE
allocated to reportable segment other than interest in MR NT 2 REZSBRIN o
associates.
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36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 36. D EER (£)

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZTAF+_A=+t-BLEE

Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
BE BE  RESE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiET TET TET FTiET
Turnover —F 3]
Net gain on disposal of financial assets at &R BRIER A LEEE Y
fair value through profit or loss MEAE Y BFEE 42,025 _ _ 42,025
Dividend income B EUA 302 - - 302
Interest income from provision of financial 844 BER T 2 F B U A
services - 4,191 - 4,191
Total turnover BEED 42,327 4,191 - 46,518
Operating results ReExE
Segment results NEER 68,819 35,763 (8,572) 96,010
Share of result of associates eI ¥ 2,676
Impairment loss on REE DR 2 #RZ
interest in an associate BEEE (158,500)
Loss from continuing operations REBELEEBLER (59,814)
Loss from discontinued operations REERIEGEEBZER (1,798)
Loss attributable to shareholders BREHEE (61,612)
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36. 7 EER (&)
REBHE

36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
By business segments

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-SRAFT-A=T—BLFE

120

Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
RE BE  KESRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FHET FHET TET
Other information HER
Assets - Continuing operations BE —RELCEER 273,919 104,511 100,651 479,081
- Discontinued operations —BERIEEEER 5,286
~ Interest in associates N =N £ 37,094
521,461
Liabilities — Continuing operations BRE -BALEER - 1,390 109,042 110,432
- Discontinued operations —BRIEREER 2,632
113,064
Capital expenditure - Continuing EARY -BELEER
operations - - - -
- Discontinued —DREEEER
operations 5
5
Depreciation and other non-cash HEREMFES
expenditures — Continuing operations R -HRC=%% - (42,769) 7,679 (35,090)
- Discontinued operations —BERIEEEER 590
- Impairment loss on ~RBE DR ZERZ
interest in an associate MEEE 158,500
124,000

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to reportable segment other than interest in

associates.
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36. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

37.

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets,
analysed by the geographical areas in which the assets are
located:

B %% R MY R

36. pEER (&)
i B & B
UTAERDEE (THESHBEE
BN IRE PR 815 2 IREE D -

31 December 2010
—2-FFEt-A=t-8

Other regions

Hong Kong in the PRC Total
&8 HEHHAMHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET TR
Non-current assets FERBEE 33,421 72,475 105,896
31 December 2009
—EENFE+ZA=+—H
Other regions
Hong Kong in the PRC Total
8 TEEMMMER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT TETT T
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,614 2,684 38,298

About 100% of revenue of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2010 and 2009 are derived in Hong Kong, the
place of domicile of the Group's operating entities.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures of other income have been reclassified
for account presentation purpose. Conforming to current
year's presentation, written back of provision for bad and
doubtful debts of HK$42,769,000 that was included in other
income has been reclassified under (Provision) Written back of
provision for bad and doubtful debts. The revised presentation
reflects more appropriately the nature of these items. These
reclassifications have no effect on the reported financial
position, results or cash flows of the Group.

AEERBE_T-ZTFR_TTNF+=
A=t—HUEFEZ2HMRATREEE (A
AEBEEERZEMME) -

37. kBB F

HMW A 2B FERIRE 2|
BB -ATEAFEZEHRA
BAGFAHEMBAZRZIRBERD
42,769,000 TE EF D EEREIK
(BE)BERD HELKET2MER
HEMRMZEEBEE 2ME - L EEHH
B EFEAEE 2D MEFBMRR
EEFR LRI -
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
a summary of events after reporting period is set out below:

On 8 January 2011, the shareholders approved a capital
reorganisation pursuant to which every 10 issued shares
of par value of HK$0.10 each will be consolidated into
1 consolidated share of par value of HK$1.00 each. The
nominal value of all the issued consolidated shares would be
reduced from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01 each by cancelling
a sum of HK$0.99 from the paid-up capital on each issued
share by way of a reduction of capital. The number of
issued share capital would be reduced from 4,060,825,000
to 406,082,500 ("“Adjusted Share”). On the same date,
shareholders’ approval was obtained to implement the rights
issue in the proportion of eight rights shares for every one
Adjusted Share held at the Subscription Price of HK$0.125 per
rights share.

The capital reorganisation was approved by the Grand Court
of the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2011 and the rights issue
will proceed in accordance with the expected timetable as set
out in the announcement made by the Company on 7 March
2011.

As the capital reorganisation has been effected before the
date of the issuance of the financial statements, the number
of shares in arriving at the loss per share has been adjusted
accordingly. However, since the rights issue will be effected
after the date of the issuance of these financial statements,
no adjustment to the number of shares is made in respect of
the rights issue.
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BEMBRER
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RZZE——F—ANB BREMERE
B4 B S TRSREEI0BILZ
BEEITRNDIEEMHA—REREE.0
BLzEHBRO -FBEEITEMHERNG
ZEERBRARER A RAEFHETRE
BTN Z BRI A0.99F L AT
E{E1.00/8 TR EFREE.01E T
BEITIRAZ B 5 H4,060,825,000/% 5
4 2406,082,500/% ([4EFAER M) -
BAH BREHEZSHEE - REFHER
DN\ AR D 2 L BT SRR - 2R
BEARBRMEARRM0.125F T
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HERASA  MERBZBARAAER
TE-—F=ZREREHZAMHAEZ
B AR A R 1T

PO AN 4R D 0 B A5 i ok T % B R AT
EIT HEAEEREBEREZEONHEED
MAEHFREE - AT - B L 5 8
¥Rk T3 B BRETT AL\ K
HBRMBBIELFHE-




Financial Summary

BB B E

ATREDTEBAERAR ([ARE]) REH
BB (5 [ AKE])BERFZETES
BEEWBABRRMEEMBRREHME-

The following is a summary of the published consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of Forefront Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the past five years.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE mEZEBARRE
INCOME
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E2-ZF —TTNF ZTTN\F CTTLF CTLRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FEr FErT
Turnover EES (21,703) 46,518 (71,564) (51,774) 3,786
Other income H A A 29,239 513 15,567 18,518 337
(Provision) Written back of RIZWR ()
provision for bad and BiE# o
doubtful debts (89,346) 42,769 (44,240) - -
Distribution and selling DERHEERS
expenses - - - (331) (286)
General and administrative — B RITHFEX
expenses (18,913) (19,637) (25,947) (128,386) (15,919)
Changes in fair value of RERIEEATE
financial assets at fair value BBV BKEEZ
though profit or loss LNTHEEE (116,551) 26,839 (142,310) (139,420) -
Finance costs BEKA (1,324) (992) (1,630) (24,250) (290)
Share of profit of an associate JE{5—FIH & A7
il 1,393 2,676 4,464 1,860 -
Impairment loss on interest in - R —E¥E AR 2
an associate B REREE - (158,500) - - -
Impairment loss on intangible & & E 2 BE I8
assets (12,258) - - - -
Loss before taxation BRI ER (229,463) (59,814) (265,660) (323,783) (12,372)
Taxation AL - - - - -
Loss from continuing REBELEEBK L
operations B (229,463) (59,814)  (265,660)  (323,783) (12,372)
Loss from discontinued REKRIEEER 2
operations B#E - (1,798) (8,642) (9,404) (12,380)
(229,463) (61,612) (274,302) (333,187) (24,752)
Attributable to: AT ALIE:
Equity holders of the BRAIREREA
parent (229,463) (61,612) (274,302) (333,187) (24,752)
Non-controlling interests R ER - - - - -
Loss attributable to W R (& 18
shareholders (229,463) (61,612) (274,302) (333,187) (24,752)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FREMBMRRE
POSITION
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-BF CZTThE ZETN\F ZTTLHE CZZTTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET FET FHT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 166,408 38,298 39,534 72,006 3,524
Current assets REEE 753,657 483,163 230,821 434,155 103,763
Current liabilities mEaE (29,820) (28,603) (45,080) (259,277) (82,628)
Net current assets MEBEFE 723,837 454,560 185,741 174,878 21,135
Total assets less current EEBERRDERE
liabilities 890,245 492,858 225,275 246,884 24,659
Non-current liabilities =N - 84,461 - - -
Net assets BEFE 890,245 408,397 225,275 246,884 24,659
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